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Development Zone Company SOC Ltd for the period 
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General Information

1. Public Entity’s General Information

REGISTERED NAME:    Richards Bay Industrial    
      Development Zone Company   
      SOC Ltd 

REGISTRATION NUMBER:   2002/009856/07

PHYSICAL ADDRESS:    Captains Walk Building   
      Tuzi Gazi Waterfront
      150 Pioneer Road 
      Richards Bay

POSTAL ADDRESS:     Private Bag X1005
      Richards Bay
      3900

TELEPHONE NUMBER:    +27 35 788 0571
FAX NUMBER:     +27 35 788 0578
EMAIL ADDRESS:     info@rbidz.co.za
WEBSITE ADDRESS:     www.rbidz.co.za
EXTERNAL AUDITORS:    Ngubane & Co.
BANKERS:     ABSA Ltd  
COMPANY/ BOARD SECRETARY  Adv KN Harvey
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2. Strategic Overview
 

2.4. Strategic Outcome Orientated Goals
 • Attract new sustainable investments 
 • Securing adequate resources to ensure fully serviced compliant sites
 • Contribute towards job creation
 • Ensure good governance. 

3. Legislative and Other Mandates
The Richards Bay IDZ is a Schedule 3D entity in terms of the Public Finance Management Act. 

The IDZ Programme in South Africa was established in terms of a cabinet resolution of September 2002, and is currently 
regulated by, the Manufacturing Development Act (Act No. 187 of 1993). The program is contained in Regulation No: 
R1224 of 1 December 2000 (Government Gazette No: 21803), which was subsequently amended by Government Notice 
No R1065 of 27 October 2006 (Government Gazette No. 29320).  

The RBIDZ was separately established by Government Notice No. 644 of 26 April 2002 (Government Gazette 23369) and 
its area was then amended by Government Notice No. 1045 of 4 August 2006 (Government Gazette 29094). 

2 S OO

2.1.  Vision  
“A preferred industrial location for quality investments in Africa”

2.2.  Mission
“To attract appropriate sustainable investments for economic development of the region”

2.3.  Values

 Honesty 
 A member of RBIDZ shall speak the truth and create trust in minds of all stakeholders.

 Integrity
 We shall pursue ethical practices by being Open, Sincere and Consistency of Actions.

 Respect 
 We shall embrace diversity by treating each other with Respect, Trust and Dignity at all times.

 Professionalism 
 We shall conduct our business with our stakeholders and investors with highest levels of 
 excellence, competence and responsibility.

 Sustainability
 We shall pursue the development of the RBIDZ to meet the present needs without 
 compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

PART A:
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The programme is essential to Government’s strategic 
initiative of policy measures to “…elicit a higher level of 
investments that contribute to the growth of the economy 
and creation of jobs”.

The purpose of proclaiming the RBIDZ was to –
(a) facilitate the creation of an industrial complex 
 having strategic economic advantage;
(b) provide the location for the establishment of
 strategic investments;
(c) enable the exploitation of resource-intensive 
 industries;
(d) take advantage of existing industrial capacity, 
 promote integration with local industry and increase 
 value-added production;
(e) create employment and other economic and 
 social benefi ts in the region in which it is located;
(f) be consistent with any applicable national policies 
 and laws, as determined by appropriate environmental, 
 economic and technical analyses;
(g) develop and operate an IDZ in the area designated 

in the operator permit, including all infrastructure, 
utilities, buildings, warehouses, factory shells and 
other facilities and improvements necessary for its 
operation, which may incorporate a delimited CCA, 
designated in accordance with Section 21A of the 
Customs & Excise Act (Act No. 91 of 1964) and linked 
to the Port of Richards Bay;

(h) provide quality services infrastructure, including  
state-of-the-art ICT and transport infrastructure  
and business and utility services, which are 
appropriate to attract internationally competitive, 
export-orientated manufacturing businesses; 

(i) take ownership of the assets and affairs of the 
Zone and be responsible for on-going management  
and maintenance thereof in an effective and 
effi cient manner, which includes ensuring its 
sustainability and ensuring that both the zone 
and locators therein are compliant with all laws;

(j) establish a one–stop–service–centre and provide 
commensurate HR capacity, expertise and 

suited technologies for expedited servicing 
and assistance to the IDZ Enterprises in respect 
of registration, business permits and licenses, 
environmental permits, accessing incentives, customs 
clearance processes, tax matters and similar;

(k) make arrangements for and mobilise fi nancial, 
human, physical, and intellectual requisite resources 
for the Development Zone; and

(l) operate in a manner that recognises that the 
shareholder is prioritising development, socio-
economic improvement and long term sustainability, 
rather than fi nancial profi t.

In respect of these laws, rules and regulations, the 
RBIDZ shall, in conjunction and collaboration with 
South African Revenue Services: Customs and Excise 
Division, be responsible or facilitate compliance by IDZ 
Enterprises, with all IDZ specifi c legislation, rules and 
regulations regarding movement of goods, persons and 
vehicles into and out of the proclaimed areas, as well 
as with legislation, guidelines and standards; specifi cally 
pertaining to safety, health and environment.

In short therefore, the purpose of the RBIDZ is to develop 
an industrial estate in order to attract local and foreign 
investors who will create production capacity to 
benefi ciate South Africa’s raw materials prior to export 
and will thereby create employment and improve the 
skills base.  

It is thus an integral part of Government’s macro-
economic policy to develop South Africa’s manufacturing 
sector by encouraging investment in the manufacturing 
industries, centred on benefi ciation of the country’s 
natural resources.

ANNUAL  REPORT  2013/2014
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4. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 

General Information ...continued

Board of Directors

Chief Executive Offi cer

Executive Manager
Offi ce of the CEO

Board Committees

Executive Manager
Safety, Health 
Environment 
& Quality

Executive Manager
Corporate Services

Executive Manager
Business 

Development 
& Marketing

Executive Manager
Infrastructure,
Planning & 

Development

Chief Financial Offi cer
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Foreword by the MEC

Honourable 
Michael Mabuyakhulu,

The global economic downturn left a signifi cant 
negative footprint on the South African economy 
because of the inherent close integration through 
the fi nancial sector, trade and investment. As such, 
the local economy followed its main trading partners 
into, and subsequently, out of the recession registering 
a slowdown in output of 1, 5 per cent in 2009. The 
South African economy has subsequently remained on a 
cautious growth trajectory thereafter, albeit registering 
slower growth than required to signifi cantly mitigate 
the challenges of unemployment, poverty and inequality. 

Following the 1,5 per cent contraction registered during 2009, 
the KwaZulu-Natal economy grew by 3,6 per cent in 2011 
followed by 2,8 per cent in 2012. Most of this growth came from 
the manufacturing sector, which represents a lion’s share of 
the economic activity in KwaZulu-Natal and a signifi cant 
contribution in South Africa. It is projected that the provincial 
economy will grow by around 2,9 per cent in 2014 and 3,2 
per cent in 2015.

Labour market patterns in KwaZulu-Natal mirrored the national 
patterns, with employment declining by an estimated 285 000 
jobs during the global fi nancial crisis. Key interventions by the 
province and other government bodies have ensured that 
the situation is reversed. Employment has since rebounded 
to reach 2,53 million jobs in the third quarter of 2013, 
whilst narrow unemployment is 22,7 per cent. This level of 
unemployment highlights the signifi cant amount of work 
that still needs to happen at a provincial level to uplift the 

economy of the province and facilitate the creation of more 
jobs for people in the province.

Improving economic growth through attraction of foreign 
direct investment and job creation are two main thrusts of 
the RBIDZ. In providing supportive environment for the RBIDZ 
to discharge its mandate, the Province developed two key 
functional documents, the Provincial Growth Development 
Strategy and KwaZulu-Natal Industrial Development Strategy 
which prioritises sectors based on their ability to absorb labour, 
improve contribution to GDP, and stimulate trade and exports, 
and ability to attract foreign exchange earnings. 

Whilst the focus of the RBIDZ during 2011/12 and 2012/13 
fi nancial years was on development planning and installation 
of infrastructure necessary for investment attraction, 2013/2014 
FY saw a turnaround achievement whereby the RBIDZ asserted 
itself as the driver of economic transformation in the Northern 
Zululand region. The Board provided a streamlined and 
focused direction of the entity as documented in its 5 year 
Strategic Plan. 

The highlights for the reporting period include completion 
and adoption of the 50 year Master Plan. The Master Plan 
provides a spatial framework for the expansion of the RBIDZ 
land portfolio whereby 3000 Ha of land is earmarked north 
of Richards Bay. The Plan is responding to investor enquiries 
and demand for manufacturing sector which often requires 
larger space that the current land precincts could not offer. 
The Master Plan, as the blue print for the RBIDZ, will be the 
convergence platform for industrial planning activities for 

MPP MEC for Economic Development 
and Tourism, KwaZulu-Natal

PART A:
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interested and affected government departments and 
state entities such as Transnet, Eskom and SANRAL. This is 
in recognition that only a structured collaboration among 
government departments and relevant public entities will serve 
as a pillar of the economic development. Such collaboration 
will assist in circumventing sporadic, uncoordinated and 
disjointed economic development initiatives. 

Key to the Master Plan initiative is its linkage to the Industrial 
Economic Hubs established in each District Municipality. The 
Industrial Economic Hubs are envisaged to compliment and 
be intricately linked to the SEZs as feeder industries that are 
meant to address spatial disparities in levels of economic 
development across the province.

Whilst the RBIDZ created 1346 construction jobs during the 
2013/14 fi nancial year, it is heartening to report that the 
RBIDZ recorded over R6.8 billion worth of investment projects 
on its pipeline with a potential to create more than 2400 
jobs on sectors such as wood and wood - products, metals 
(including mineral benefi ciation) and the green economy/ 
renewable energy. The drive to convert pipeline projects 
into investment projects on the ground resulted in signing 
recognition agreements with three potential investors as a way 
of commitment to establish their plants in the Zone. Besides 
the R4.56 billion to be invested and over 1500 new jobs to 
be created, these projects directly address government’s 
focus in value adding, processing of raw materials, and use 
of renewable and alternative energy sources. 

Management, supported by the Board, is working closely 
with the investors in providing support through various 
legislative processes they still need to fulfi l.  The ease of doing 
business in a particular area is a critical key factor in making 
an investment decision.  It is collectively our mandate as 
government entities, especially within the IDZ proclaimed 
areas, to create opportunities that will reduce the red tape 
and foster a much more determined and coherent focus 
on improving the investment climate. Therefore, support from 
Transnet and the Port of Richards Bay in particular, District and 
Local Municipalities, Mhlathuze Water, various government 
departments and entities is of paramount importance in 
ensuring that these projects are a success.

I would like to thank Mr Mohlomi Nkopane for the sterling 
performance as an Acting CEO and welcome Mr Phumelele 
Motsoahae who joined the RBIDZ in December 2013 as the 
new CEO, I wish him all the success in steering the RBIDZ to 
even greater heights.

Lastly, I would like to pass my sincere gratitude to the Board 
for their continued support.

Honourable Michael Mabuyakhulu
MPP MEC for the Economic Development and Tourism
Honourable Michael Mabuyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyakaaaaa hu
MPP MEC for the Economic Deve
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FOREWORD BY MEC

Ms Bongiwe Kunene
Board Chairperson

The past year has been a momentous one for the 
Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone, the 
highlight of which was undoubtedly the signing of 
three investors whose investments will cumulatively 
bring investment estimated to R4,56 billion to the 
Richards Bay area.  

The signing of these three investors indicates the potential 
of the RBIDZ to realise the dream for Government’s Industrial 
Development Zone Programme and represent investments 
by both local and overseas investors and are driven at 
benefi ciation of local resources largely for the export market. 
Richards Bay is geographically well located to serve the East 
African, European and Asian markets utilizing its competitive 
advantage of a deep water port.

A further major achievement was the completion of the 50-
year Master Plan. This plan provides the future direction for 
the Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Company and 
will allow the Company to focus its efforts on developments 
which will achieve the maximum benefi ts for the region and 
the country by focusing on areas where it has a competitive 
advantage.   

Another highlight of the year was the appointment of the 
Company’s new CEO, Mr Phumelele Motsoahae. 

The Board welcomes the new CEO and trusts him to lead the 
organization to new heights. 

The Company believes there is a high potential for the 
development of industries serving the oil and gas industry and 
the construction, maintenance, repair and servicing of off-
shore platforms (Rigs). An absence of dry dock facilities for the 
larger 18,000 TEU container vessels also gives an opportunity 
for ship repair services. The inauguration of industrial hubs in 
the province presents opportunities for the establishment of 
linkages in downstream industries.

The major challenge in the forthcoming years will be to 
secure funding for the purchase and development of land 
in order to implement the Master Plan.  The aim of IDZ’s is to 
attract industry, create jobs and be sustainable, rather than 
to maximize profi ts through prohibitive rentals. Land needs to 
be made available to investors at an attractive rate, which 
the RBIDZ has, until now, strived to do.

 The recent Income Tax Amendment Act, will go a long way 
in ensuring that rentals are no longer the major incentive for 
investment in the zone. 

The imminent promulgation of the Special Economic Zones 
Act will bring the long awaited advantages to the RBIDZ. On a 
sad note we learned of the passing of the Company’s former 

Foreword by the Chairperson
PART A:
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CEO, Mr Ike Nxedlana. Mr Nxedlana made a substantial contribution to the RBIDZ taking it from an entity with three staff and 
no developed land to a point where the fi rst stage of earthworks for Phase 1A was complete. Our deepest condolences go 
to his family on his untimely passing. 

My gratitude goes to the Honourable Minister of Trade and Industry, Hon Professor Davies for supporting the RBIDZ. A special 
thank you goes to our Executive Authority, the MEC for Economic Development and Tourism, Hon Mr Mabuyakhulu for his support 
for the Company and its Board. I want to thank my Board for all their efforts during the year in support of the Company. You 
have, through the hours you have put in, demonstrated your commitment to ensuring the success of the RBIDZ. 

Finally I would like to thank the CEO and staff of the Company. Without you the Company cannot succeed. Thank you for all your 
efforts in helping the RBIDZ achieve its potential. As will be seen from the above, the RBIDZ continues to progress and grow. It has 
all the potential to be the most successful IDZ/SEZ in the Country. Although this year has been good, the best is yet to come.    

Ms Bongiwe Kunene
Board Chairperson
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Mr Phumelele Motsoahae
Chief Executive Offi cer

Chief Executive Offi cer’s Overview

Introduction
The RBIDZ is one of four operational IDZ’s in South 
Africa possessing the necessary permanent IDZ 
operator permit. Its land portfolio covers 216 ha 
made up of phase 1A and 1F. Phase 1A is earmarked 
for light and general industrial activities whereas 
phase 1F is for heavy industries. Tata Steel KZN is 
still the only locator in the proclaimed IDZ and three 
potential locators with total investment value of 
R4.56 billion are planning to establish their factories 
in the RBIDZ. The entity’s fi nancial position was 
further strengthened by capital injection of R206 
million grant funding during the current fi nancial 
year to fund the provision of infrastructure and 
operating expenses. 

General fi nancial review of the public entity 
The Company fi nancial position indicates an improvement 
trajectory compared to the prior fi nancial year. The year 
on year increase of R65 million in the asset position of the 
Company is applauded. The increase is mainly refl ected in the 
cash and cash equivalent of the Company and demonstrate 
confi dence that funding stakeholders have on the Company 
to manage the fi nancial resources entrusted with the 
Company to realise the mandate of the IDZ programme. The 
Company reported a loss for the year of R760 128.00 mainly 
being calculation income tax. The Company had an opening 

deferred tax asset of R875 105 which will be utilised to absorb 
the tax commitment. The revenue stream would improve 
once the signed locators start operating on designated sites.

Spending trends of the public entity 
The Company managed to spend R131 million excluding VAT 
resulting in more than seventy percent (70%) being spent on 
service delivery programmes. Contracts worth R60 million 
were awarded during the year under review, the major ones 
being the following:
• Supply and Installation of Electrical Infrastructure 

(R37 million excluding VAT); and
• Construction of Civil Engineering Service 

(R16 million excluding VAT).

Capacity constraints and challenges  facing the 
public entity
The entity managed to fi ll three positions at executive level 
namely; Chief Executive Offi cer, Infrastructure Planning and 
Development Executive, and Business Development and 
Marketing Executive. The vacant position of Safety, Health, 
Environment and Quality (SHEQ) Executive  would be fi nalised 
in the new fi nancial year. The unexpected budget cut of R40 
million by the Department of Economic Development and 
Tourism resulted in the approval of re-prioritisation of projects 
and deferral of other projects to the new fi nancial year. 
Stakeholder management interaction would be enforced/ 
ramped up to avoid shocks and surprises.

PART A:
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Discontinued activities / activities to be discontinued
No activities were discontinued during the fi nancial year 
under review and there are currently no activities to be 
discontinued in the new fi nancial year.

New or proposed activities
The Board approved the 50 years Master Plan and has since 
been presented to the Executive Authority, Provincial Treasury 
and the dti. The necessary support has been obtained from 
other key stakeholders, being Municipalities, Mhlathuze Water 
Board, relevant Government Departments and public entities 
like Transnet. The next step is to present the plan to Cabinet 
of KwaZulu-Natal.

Request for roll over of funds.
No request for roll over of funds was submitted to the relevant 
authority. The entities budget allocation from the Department 
of Economic Development and Tourism was cut by R40 million 
during the fi nancial year under review and had to complete the 
fi nancial year with limited resources. The Board approved the 
internal variation of funds to absorb the impact of the budget 
cut on operations resulting in deferment of other projects to 
the new fi nancial year. The entity managed to successfully 
apply for R151 million from the SEZ Fund and the funds were 
duly transferred to the entity before the end of the 2013/14 
fi nancial year. The funding agreement detailing the projects to 
be funded has been concluded between the entity and the 
dti. Procurement plans are in place and invitations of tenders 
for the proposed projects are in progress.

Supply chain management
No unsolicited bid proposals were considered or registered 
in the reporting period.

In line with the National Treasury SCM Framework and 
applicable regulations, the RBIDZ has and maintains an 
appropriate supply chain system for effective implementation 
of the SCM framework. The system is within the ambits of 
applicable legislative provisions including the Preferential 
Procurement Framework, Broad Based Black Empowerment 
and adheres with the principles of fairness, equitable, 
transparent, competitive and cost effective. Amongst other 
critical roles the SCM system seeks to achieve, is to prevent 
irregular expenditure, fruitless and wasteful expenditure, 
losses resulting from criminal conduct, and expenditure not 
complying with the operational policies of the public entity

Audit report matters 
Action plans are in place to address the audit fi ndings for the 
2013/14 fi nancial year. The detailed action plan with timelines 
has been presented to the Audit and Risk Committee and 
further status reports will be tabled at future meetings of the 
Committee.

Economic Viability
The entity managed to sign recognition agreements with 
three potential locators. The value of the investments total 
R4.56 billion. The realisation of these three projects would 
contribute towards delivering on the mandate IDZ programme 
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Chief Executive Offi cer’s Overview ...continued

which is job creation and skills transfer. All efforts would be 
directed at ensuring that the necessary legislative approvals 
and support are in place for the projects to move swiftly to 
implementation and operational stage. Some of the potential 
locators have already started with the environmental approval 
process and are likely start construction of the plant in the 
2014/15 fi nancial year with other locators constructing in the 
2015/16 fi nancial year. The fi rst stage of phase 1A amounting 
to 22 ha has been completed and ready to be marketed 
to potential locators. The phase is earmarked for light and 
general industrial activities and the entire site would be ready 
for business by the end of 2015/16 fi nancial year. Whereas; 
phase 1F of the IDZ has not been transferred to the entity, the 
transfer process will be fast tracked to secure the signing of 
lease agreements with potential locators.

Outlook/ Plans for the future  
During the fi nancial year the Board approved the 50 year 
Master Plan which is repositioning the RBIDZ for the new 
dispensation of Special Economic Zone environment. 
Increasing the footprint of the current land portfolio is one of 
the key deliverables of the Master Plan and key stakeholders 
have been identifi ed to further pursue the objective. The entity 
also signed three potential locators during the third quarter 
of the fi nancial year.

The outlook for the future will be highly infl uenced by these 
key achievements, which amongst other would include the 
following:

• Intensify the marketing drive of the entity to sign new locators 
 by implementing the newly developed Marketing Strategy;
• Commission research into other sectors (e.g. Maritime, Oil
 & Gas, Ship Building & Repairs, etc.);
• Build strong partnership with research and science institutes;

• Maintain clean governance and improve stakeholder 
 engagement initiatives; and
• Secure the required funding for infrastructure and increasing 
 the footprint of the IDZ.

Events after the reporting date;
On 22 May 2014 and in the High Court in Durban, His Lordship 
Mr Justice Jappie –
(a) Upheld the RBIDZ’s exception against the summons 
  issued by the Felicity Trust and Mr Maharaj;
(b) Dismissed the claims of both the Felicity Trust and Mr 
  Maharaj against the RBIDZ; and
(c) Awarded costs to the RBIDZ. 

Acknowledgement/s or Appreciation
My humble gratitude goes to: 
• The Board Chairperson and the Board in its entirety for their 
 collective leadership of the entity; 
• The Honourable MEC for Economic Development and 
 Tourism, the Head of Department and offi cials for constructive
 engagements during the year;
• the dti for policy guidance and fi nancial support;
• Executive Committee for being focussed on the task 
 at hand;
• Employees of the entity whose efforts have enhanced 
 the organisations performance; and
• The stakeholders at large for their continued support for 
 our efforts to deliver on the IDZ mandate.  

Mr Phumelele Motsoahae
Chief Executive Offi cer

PART A:
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Board of Directors
PART A:

Seated from left to right: Phumelele Motsoahae (CEO), Mel Clark (Deputy Chairperson), Bongiwe Kunene (Chairperson),

Standing from left to right: Andile Mahlalutye, Kumaran Naidoo, Mohlomi Nkopane (CFO), Matshediso Ndlovu,



19ANNUAL  REPORT  2013/2014

Seated from left to right: Zolani Fihlani, Nozipho Sithole, Mbali Ndlovu

Standing from left to right: Tina Eboka, Elphas Mbatha, Sibusiso Makhanya, Damon Mathfi eld
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Performance Information
PART B:

2013/14 PERFORMANCE REPORT

GOALS STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES

KEY
PERFORMANCE 

AREA

ANNUAL 
TARGET

ACHIEVEMENTS REASONS FOR VARIANCE

ENSURE GOOD 
GOVERNANCE

Adherence to 
legislation, ethical 
standards, best 
practices and 
internal policies

% Risk mitigation 
plans executed 
on time

90% 82 %
Out of 73 action 
plans 66 were 
implemented. 

Only 7 action plans were not 
implemented. The reasons for 
non-implementation are:  Zone 
rules implementation can only 
be done when a locator that has 
signed a recognition agreement 
and lease start operations. Land 
transfer is delayed from the City 
of uMhlathuze. The IFRS training 
could not be sourced due to 
misalignment of scope in the 
training scope offered vs the 
training scope that was required 
by the RBIDZ.

Ensure 
development 
of the zone is 
aligned to the 
Master Plan

Delivery of 10 
year Business 
Plan

Implement 
special 
projects

Land valuation 
for phase 2 
conducted.

Delivery of fi nal 
Master Plan

Implement 
special 
projects

Isithebe 
feasibility project 
implementation 
in progress. 

Adoption of 
Master Plan by 
Board

Approval of the 
Master Plan

Master Plan was 
approved by the 
Board on the 
25th October 
2013

Submission to 
the MEC and 

the dti for 
ratifi cation and 
support

Get buy in  
from MEC, 

the dti and 
National 
Treasury

The Master Plan 
was presented 

to the dti on 
the 03rd March 
2014.
The MEC 
endorsed the 
Master Plan on 
the 18th March 
2014.

Signed options 
or purchase 
agreement

Initiate 
negotiations 
and reach 
agreements 
with land 
owners

Approval 
received 
from SAPPI in 
November 2013 
to undertake 
specialist studies 
for Phase 2A.

A fi rst right of refusal was sent to 
SAPPI on 28 February 2014 for their 
signature. SAPPI is reviewing the 
document.

Establish 
integrated  IT 
management 
systems

ICT systems 
availability to be 
at 95% all the 
time

95%  93% There were arbitrary interruptions 
in emails in quarter 3 for 15 days. 
The lapse in ADSL contract with 
Mweb through Gijima resulted 
in disconnection. That glitch was 
further aggravated by a random 
blackout. 
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2013/14 PERFORMANCE REPORT

GOALS STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES

KEY
PERFORMANCE 

AREA

ANNUAL 
TARGET

ACHIEVEMENTS REASONS FOR VARIANCE

ENSURE GOOD 
GOVERNANCE

Develop 
appropriate 
fi nancial and 
supply chain 
management 
framework

Unqualifi ed 
Audit

1 An unqualifi ed 
audit was 
achieved

Percentage 
budget 
committed 
within a 
fi nancial year

100% 42.73% was 
committed

The R40mil budget cut by 
the Department of Economic 
Development and Tourism had an 
effect on the budget amount to be 
committed. The interdependency of 
infrastructure projects within Phase 
1A causes delays in implementing 
projects faster due to alignment in 
implementation.

Percentage 
budget spent 
within a 
fi nancial year

100% 31.89% was 
spent.

The delay in the land transfer 
for Phase 1A and 1F. The money 
budgeted for bulk contributions for 
Phase 1F was also not spent.

Turnaround time 
for procurement 
of goods and 
services. 90days 
for an open 
tender, 30days 
for a closed 
tender

90% 78% In some closed tenders, less 
response than minimum required 
was received, resulting in extension 
of time in restarting the process. In 
some open tenders, clarifi cation 
during evaluation had to be 
sought from bidders.

Percentage of 
valid invoices 
paid within 30 
days

100% 100%. 

Ensure effective 
Human Resources 
management 
and development

Individual 
development 
plans in place

100% 96% 24 out of 26 plans were signed. 
The outstanding plans include 1 
for a new appointee (CEO) The 
other outstanding plan is for the 
ICT Manager who was charged 
for subjecting the company into 
disrepute in February 2014 and was 
subsequently dismissed on the 7th 
April after a disciplinary hearing.

Percentage of 
performance 
assessments 
conducted

100% 92% 2 performance assessment 
sessions were conducted for 
the fi nancial year except for the 
CEO.24 performance assessments 
were conducted for Quarter 1 and 
2. Assessments for quarter 3 and 4 
are currently underway.

Employee 
assistance 
programme 
developed and 
implemented

Develop the 
EAP framework

Draft Framework 
available

The draft still needs to be submitted 
to  the Board for approval.
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GOALS STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES

KEY
PERFORMANCE 

AREA

ANNUAL 
TARGET

ACHIEVEMENTS REASONS FOR VARIANCE

ENSURE GOOD 
GOVERNANCE

Corporate Social 
Investment

Number of 
CSI initiatives 
undertaken

4 11 projects 
implemented

Over and above the planned 
activities there were requests that 
were received and approved that 
are in line with the CSI objectives.

Number of 
internship 
positions 
created

4 3 Delay on appointment of Intern 
was caused by not getting the 
suitable candidates during 
shortlisting process of the 
Project Manager: Civil. Therefore, 
appointment of Intern who would 
have no Programme Manager/
Mentor.  

Adherence 
to SHE Legal 
requirements

Number of SHE 
construction 
audits

12 29 SHE Audits 
were conducted

The initial target was based on 
auditing two projects i.e. Bulk 
earthworks and installation of civils, 
however, during the construction of 
storm water canal, it was realized 
that the discharge structure would 
extend beyond RBIDZ authorized 
site for about 10 m to the wetland. 
KZN Wildlife, Water Affairs and 
Environmental Affairs departments 
required a separate EMP to 
manage potential impacts on this 
area and monthly additional audits 
had to be undertaken over the 10 
months period of construction.

% of incident 
free hours

90% 100% incident 
free hours

Land valuation 
conducted in all 
prospective land

Report 
obtained

Land valuation 
Report obtained 
in March 2014 
for proposed 
Phase 2A

Environmental 
Sustainability 
framework 
developed

1  1

Environmental 
Approval for 
phase 1F

Submit 
application 
and conduct 
EIA processes

Application 
submitted to 
the National 
Department of 
Environmental 
Affairs and the 
EIA process is in 
progress 

Health, 
Safety and 
Environmental 
Improvement 
Initiatives

8 8 initiatives were 
conducted. 

% of EIA projects 
approved in less 
than 18 months

90% 100%

Performance Information ...continued
PART B:
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2013/14 PERFORMANCE REPORT

GOALS STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES

KEY
PERFORMANCE 

AREA

ANNUAL 
TARGET

ACHIEVE-
MENTS

REASONS FOR VARIANCE

ENSURE GOOD 
GOVERNANCE

Adherence 
to SHE Legal 
requirements

Water use licence 
(WUL) for 1A and 1F

1 WUL for 1A WUL not 
obtained

The environmental authorisation for 
Medway road was a pre -requisite for 
water use licence application process.   
The authorisation was received 
in March, only then did the WUL 
application process begin.

Environmental 
Approval for 
Medway Road 
expansion

Approval 
obtained

Environmental 
approval  for 
Medway Road 
expansion 
obtained in 
March 2014

Develop and 
implement quality 
management 
systems

ISO 9001 obtained Preparation 
and pre-
audit

Pre-Audit report 
was received in 
February 2014. 

% quality 
improvement 
recommendations 
implemented

80% 100%

Implementation 
of the estate 
management 
strategy

CCA implementation 60% 30% Draft CCA 
policy in place

CCA implementation reprioritised for 
the next fi nancial year  due to current 
negotiations with Tata steel and SARS

Estate management 
strategy fi nalised

60% 100%

Effi cient facilities 
management

Number of 
scheduled 
maintenance 
activities

3 3

Turnaround time 
for emergency 
maintenance 
activities-5days

95% 100% 

SECURING 
ADEQUATE 
RESOURCES 
TO ENSURE 
FULLY SERVICED 
COMPLIANT 
SITES

Securing of 
funding to 
complete 
infrastructure for 
Phase 1A and 1F

Finding applications 
submitted to 
complete Phase 1A 
and 1F

1 funding 
application

3 funding 
applications 

Planning 
environmental 
and design 
approvals for 
phases 1A and 1F

Planning approval 
for Phase 1F

PDA 
approval

PDA approval 
received on 
the 27th March 
2014

Approvals of 
electrical designs for 
phase 1A by local 
authority

Approval Electrical design 
approvals 
received in 
Quarter1

Planning 
environmental 
and design 
approvals for 
phases 1A and 1F

Approvals of designs 
for Phase 1F

Approval No Approval Consultant appointed on 20 
November 2013 to undertake detail 
design for Phase 1F.  The detail 
design process for Phase 1F cannot 
commence until a decision is taken 
by the Department of Water Affairs 
on which wetland areas has to be 
accommodated in Phase 1F layout. A 
decision is expected in February 2015
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GOALS STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES

KEY
PERFORMANCE 

AREA

ANNUAL 
TARGET

ACHIEVEMENTS REASONS FOR VARIANCE

SECURING 
ADEQUATE 
RESOURCES 
TO ENSURE 
FULLY SERVICED 
COMPLIANT SITES

Installation of 
engineering 
infrastructure to 
phases 1A and 
1F

Stage 1 of 
Phase 1A civil 
infrastructure 
completed

Issuing 
commissioning 
certifi cate

Commissioning 
certifi cate issued

Maintenance 
strategy 
developed and 
implemented

100% 100% complete

Stage 1 of Phase 
1A electrical 
infrastructure 
completed

Issuing 
commissioning 
certifi cate

No 
commissioning 
certifi cate

Overall project 
progress 25% 
complete.

The tender could not be advertised 
before approval of the electrical 
design was granted by the 
uMhlathuze Municipality. Approval 
was received from the uMhlathuze 
Municipality on 11 July 2013. Tender 
award took place on 10 October 
2013. Site handover 1 Nov 2013.

Number 
of people 
employed for 
construction 
jobs

400 1346 
construction 
jobs created up 
to the end of 
Quarter 4

ATTRACT NEW 
INVESTMENTS

Implement 
a targeted 
marketing 
strategy

The value of 
investment by 
investors

R15mil The RBIDZ has 
signed up 
R4.56 billion 
investment. 
Nyanza Light 
metals-R4.5 bill
Phaka-  Sangle- 
R20mill 
and Oasis 
Ecosolutions- 
R40 mill

Marketing 
strategy 
(incorporating 
SEZ model) 
implemented

75% 25% of the 
marketing 
strategy 
implemented

The marketing strategy was delayed 
due to alignment with the land 
options (to enable clustering) as 
well as the funding model of the 
Master Plan. The Strategy could only 
be fi nalised after the approval of 
the Master Plan, which entailed the 
land options. Final draft Marketing 
Strategy to be presented to the 
Board

Sector 
promotional 
plan 
developed and 
implemented

60%  60% Sector identifi cation analysis 
fi nalised as part of the marketing 
strategy. 5 sector promotional 
activities were undertaken.

Assist investors to 
obtain relevant 
licences and 
approvals

Business 
retention and 
after care 
strategy

Strategy 
developed and 
implemented

Strategy was 
developed 
as part of the 
Marketing 
Strategy: 

Investor project 
facilitation

3 3 projects under 
facilitation 

Leads 
generation

5 13 

Performance Information ...continued
PART B:
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1. Statement of Responsibility for 
 Performance Information

Statement of Responsibility for Performance Information for the year ended 31 March 2014

As the Chief Executive Offi cer responsible for the preparation of the public entity’s performance information, in my 
opinion, the performance information fairly refl ects the actual achievements against planned objectives, indictors 
and targets as per the strategic and annual performance plan of the public entity for the fi nancial year ended 
31 March 2014.

The performance information of the entity set out on page 20 to page 33 was approved by the Board.

The RBIDZ performance information for the year ended 31 March 2014 has been examined by the external auditors and 
their report is presented on page 51. 

Phumelele Motsoahae 
Chief Executive Offi cer
Date: 28 May 2014

2.  Auditor’s Report: Predetermined Objectives
Refer to page 51 of the Report of the External Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial Information.

3. Overview of Public Entity’s Performance

3.1 Service Delivery Environment

Infrastructure Development
Signifi cant progress has been achieved in the 2013/14 fi nancial year with planning approvals and infrastructure development 
by the RBIDZ. The highlights being planning approvals received in terms of the KwaZulu-Natal Planning and Development 
Act for Phases 1A & 1F of the RBIDZ and the completion of civil engineering infrastructure to the fi rst 22 ha in Phase 1A. 
The completion of the civil engineering infrastructure to the fi rst 22 ha that includes internal roads, sewer, storm water 
and water networks will allow investors access to the sites for the construction of buildings or manufacturing facilities.

Performance Information ...continued
PART B:
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Infrastructure planning and development has continued for the remainder of Phase 1A with the following table indicating 
the project status of planning and infrastructure projects that were either completed, in progress or commenced in the 
2013/14 fi nancial year:

Construction Jobs Created
1346 construction jobs were created during the 2013/14 fi nancial year during the implementation of RBIDZ infrastructure 
projects.

RBIDZ Master Plan
The RBIDZ Board has adopted a 50 Year Integrated Master Plan and 10 Year Business Plan that provides strategic guidance 
for further development of the existing and proposed land portfolio in the 2013/14 fi nancial year.

The Master Plan provides a spatial framework for the expansion of the RBIDZ land portfolio by proposing the development of 
a second Phase of the RBIDZ. The spatial framework has earmarked 3000 ha of land north of Richards Bay for the expansion 
of the RBIDZ land portfolio to be developed over a 50 year planning horizon. The planning framework is supported by 
an engineering strategy to develop the required infrastructure for the proposed expansion areas. The 10 Year Business 
Plan includes capital and operational cost estimates, a master programme and a phasing strategy to develop existing 
Phases 1A, 1F and the fi rst phase of the proposed expansion area known as Phase 2A of the RBIDZ. 

Investor Attraction
 An intensive marketing drive and focused  investment promotion strategy paid off for the RBIDZ that attended to no less 
than 13 investment leads during the reporting period. The sectors targeted included mineral benefi ciation, agro processing 
and green economy projects with high potential for job creation. These investment opportunities are at varying stages 
of conceptualisation and feasibility assessments. 

Project Status

Phase 1A Stage 2 Bulk Earthworks  (46 ha) The project was 65% complete at the end of March 2014 and 
on track for completion within the contract period by the end of 
September 2014.

Rezoning and Revision of Phase 1A Layout i.t.o KwaZulu-Natal 
Planning and Development Act.

Planning approval received in June 2013.

Phase 1A Stage 1 Civil Engineering Services (22 ha) Project completed at the end of March 2014.

Phase 1A Stage 1 Electrical Engineering & ICT Services (22 ha) Tender award took place in October 2013. Project was 25% 
complete at the end of March 2014 and is expected to be 
completed by the end of August 2014. 

Phase 1A Stage 2A Civil Engineering Services (20 ha) Contract awarded in February 2014. Construction commenced 
in March 2014 and is expected to be completed by 
December 2014.

Phase 1A Stage 2A Electrical Engineering & ICT Services (20 ha) Contract awarded in February 2014. Construction to commence 
in May 2014 and is expected to be completed by 
December 2014.

Phase 1A Entrance Gate & Customs Control Area Design commenced in March 2014 with construction expected 
to commence in October  2014.

Revision of Phase 1F Layout in terms of KwaZulu-Natal Planning 
and Development Act.

Planning approval received in March 2014.
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Five investments projects were approved by the Board 
as potential locators during the reporting period 
and three of them signed   recognition agreements 
as a commitment to work, partner and become IDZ 
enterprises. The signed investors will collectively invest 
R 4.56 billion. 

The titanium dioxide pigment manufacturing company 
has concluded an agreement with RBIDZ to secure 67 
hectares of land on which the planned R4.56 billion 
titanium dioxide pigment production plant will be built. 
The plant will process about 200,000 tons per year of 
waste slag and produce about 50,000 tons per annum 
titanium dioxide pigment. The project will create 300 
direct jobs and 800 jobs during construction over 3 
years.

The solar heater assembly company requested land 
uptake of 1.5 hectares on which the planned  R20 million 
Solar Water Heater plant will be built. The project will 
create 30 direct jobs and 60 jobs during construction. 
The plant will produce 30 000 units per annum of 100 
litres and 150 litres during the fi rst year and escalating 
to 100 000 units within fi ve years of commencing 
operations. 

An oil recycling company intends to establish waste 
oil recycling and lubricants blending plant for 
producing a high grade quality heavy fuel oil, light 
fuel oil products and a diverse line of lubricants that 
meet international standards. The plant requires 
10 000 m² of land and will create 30 direct jobs and 60 
construction jobs. The total project investment value is 
R40 million.  The project will produce 1 000 metric tons 
of high grade oil and 1 000 metric tons of lubricant oil 
per month.

The RBIDZ management is working with the locators 
to facilitate fulfi lment of regulatory requirements and 
linking them with other key partners necessary for the 
success of the projects. 

4. Performance Information
by Programme

Programmes 1:  Administration
Programme Purpose:  To provide strategic support to the 
company and to maintain good corporate governance 
systems that guide the implementation of organisational 
strategy in line with mission espoused in this report.   
To establish and maintain appropriate fi nancial and 
supply chain management systems and procedures as 
well as ensuring compliance to applicable legislations, 
guidelines and reporting mandates. To provide and 
manage human capital and implement integrated 
ICT systems.

Administration is made up of the following sub-
programmes; Governance & Strategy, Finance & Supply 
Chain Management and Corporate Services 

Programme 2:  Infrastructure 
Planning & Development
Programme Purpose: To develop and maintain world 
class infrastructure for RBIDZ land through an integrated 
planning, design and management process.

Programme 3:  Business Development 
and Marketing 
Programme Purpose: The purpose of the programme 
is to formulate strategies and measures aimed at 
attracting fi xed investment for the production of exports 
and import substitutes into the Zone. The principal 
intention of the Programme is to assist the RBIDZ fulfi l 
its mandate of attracting meaningful investment that 
creates jobs and enhance productive capacity. 

Programme 4:  Safety Health Environment 
and Quality
The Programme Purpose: To ensure that RBIDZ operate 
responsibly and commits to long term sustainability 
through implementation of international best practices 
with regards to quality management, health and safety , 
environmental management and estate management.

Performance Information ...continued
PART B:
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5. Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators 
   and Planned Targets

STRATEGIC GOAL STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES KEY PERFORMANCE AREA ANNUAL TARGET

ENSURE GOOD 
GOVERNANCE

Adherence to legislation, ethical 
standards, best practices and 
internal policies

Marketing strategy 
(incorporating SEZ model) 
implemented

75%

Ensure development of the zone is 
aligned to the Master Plan

Delivery of 10 year Business Plan Implement special projects

Delivery of fi nal Master Plan Implement special projects

Adoption of Master Plan by 
Board

Approval of the Master Plan

Submission to the MEC and the 
dti for ratifi cation and support

Get buy in form MEC, the dti 
and National Treasury

Signed options or purchase 
agreement

Initiate negotiations and reach 
agreements with land owners

Establish integrated  IT 
management systems

ICT systems availability to be at 
95% all the time

95%

Develop appropriate fi nancial 
and supply chain management 
framework

Unqualifi ed Audit 1

Percentage budget committed 
within a fi nancial year

100%

Percentage budget spent within 
a fi nancial year

100%

Turnaround time for procurement 
of goods and services. 90 days 
for an open tender, 30 days for a 
closed tender

90%

Percentage of valid invoices 
paid within 30 days

100%

Ensure effective Human Resources 
management and development

Individual development plans 
in place

100%

Percentage of performance 
assessments conducted

100%

Employee assistance 
programme developed and 
implemented

Develop the EAP framework

Corporate Social Investment Number of CSI initiatives 
undertaken

4

Number of internship positions 
created

4

Adherence to SHE Legal 
requirements

Number of SHE construction 
audits

12

% of incident free hours 90%

Land valuation conducted in all 
prospective land

Report obtained

Environmental Sustainability 
framework developed

1

Environmental Approval for 
phase 1F

Submit application and 
conduct EIA processes
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STRATEGIC GOAL STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES KEY PERFORMANCE AREA ANNUAL TARGET

ENSURE GOOD 
GOVERNANCE

Adherence to SHE Legal 
requirements

Health, Safety and Environmental 
Improvement Initiatives

8

% of EIA projects approved in 
less than 18 months

90%

Water use licence (WUL) for 1A 
and 1F

1-WUL for 1A

Environmental Approval for 
Medway Road expansion

Approval obtained

Develop and implement quality 
management systems

ISO 9001 obtained Preparation and pre-audit

% quality improvement 
recommendations implemented

80%

Implementation of the estate 
management strategy

CCA implementation 60%

Estate management strategy 
fi nalised

60%

Effi cient facilities management Number of scheduled 
maintenance activities

3

Turnaround time for emergency 
maintenance activities-5days

95%

SECURING ADEQUATE 
RESOURCES TO ENSURE 
FULLY SERVICED 
COMPLIANT SITES

Securing of funding to complete 
infrastructure for Phase 1A and 1F

Finding applications submitted 
to complete Phase 1A and 1F

1 funding application

Planning environmental and design 
approvals for phases 1A and 1F

Planning approval for Phase 1F PDA approval

Approvals of electrical designs 
for phase 1A by local authority

Approval

Approvals of designs for Phase 
1F

Approval

Installation of engineering 
infrastructure to phases 1A and 1F

Stage 1 of Phase 1A civil 
infrastructure completed

Issuing commissioning 
certifi cate

Maintenance strategy 
developed and implemented

100%

Stage 1 of Phase 1A electrical 
infrastructure completed

Issuing commissioning 
certifi cate

Number of people employed for 
construction jobs

400

ATTRACT NEW 
INVESTMENTS

Implement a targeted marketing 
strategy

The value of investment by 
investors

R15mil

Marketing strategy 
(incorporating SEZ model) 
implemented

75%

Sector promotional plan 
developed and implemented

60%

Assist investors to obtain relevant 
licences and approvals

Business retention and after care 
strategy

strategy developed and 
implemented

Investor project facilitation 3

Leads generation 5

Performance Information ...continued
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Percentage committed as at 
end of the quarter

Percentage spent at 
the end of the quarter

Quarter 1 28.37 7.87

Quarter 2 24.06 15.81

Quarter 3 41.11 23.46

Quarter 4 42.73 31.89

2013/14 2012/13

Programme/
activity/objective

Budget Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Offi ce of the CEO 23 178 16 319 6 859 19 594 19 701 (107)

Finance 10 812 8 110 2 702 7 789 7 578 211

Corporate Services 5 477 4 907 570 4 465 3 492 973

BDM 5 644 4 660 984 4 647 3 804 843

IPD 5 726 3 270 2 456 2 958 2 745 213

SHEQ 3 729 2 724 1 005 3 948 3 037 911

Total 54 566 39 990 14 576 43 401 40 357 3 044

2013/14 2012/13

Programme/
activity/objective

Budget Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Major capex 204 081 91 647 112 434 331 270 90 243 241 027

Land Acquisition 146 289 - 146 289 135 000 - 135 000

5.1 Programme Expenditure

Linking performance with budgets
Below is a synopsis of how different business units spent their allocations

5.1.1 Spending trends per quarter 
The spending trend was assessed quarterly by analysing the percentage of the budget committed and the percentage 
of the budget spent at the end of the respective periods.  Below is a summary of the quarterly assessments.

5.1.2 Spending trends per programme 
The spending trend was assessed per programme by analysing the budget committed and the budget spent at the 
end of the year.  Below is a summary of programme assessments.

5.1.3 Spending trends on Capex and Land Acquisition 
Below is a summary of the Capex and Land Acquisition assessments.
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2013/14 2012/13

Sources of revenue Estimate Actual 
Amount Collected

(Over)/Under 
Collection

Estimate Actual 
Amount Collected

(Over)/Under 
Collection

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Grants 95 164 55 164 40 000 244 636 244 636 -

Interest 4 750 9 388 (4 638) 4 200 7 898 (3 698)

Other - 161 (161) - 90 (90)

Total 99 914 64 713 35 201 248 836 252 624 (7 988)

6. Summary of Financial Information

Revenue collection

The Company does not generate its own revenue but depends on the grant funding received from the Department of 
Economic Development and Tourism and the dti. In 2013/14 fi nancial year, the grant from the DEDT was reduced by 
R 40 million.  Included in the “Other” is revenue generated from the sale of tender documents, sale of minor assets, claims 
from insurance and refunds from SETA.   

6.1 Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan

Good progress has been made with the implementation of the capital investment plan with the following table 
indicating details of projects completed and projects in progress:

Project Status

Phase 1A Stage 1 Civil Engineering Services (22 ha) Project completed at the end of March 2014.

Phase 1A Stage 2 Bulk Earthworks  (46 ha) The project was 65% complete at the end of March 2013 and 
on track for completion within the contract period by the end of 
September 2014

Phase 1A Stage 1 Electrical Engineering & ICT Services (22 ha) Tender award took place in October 2013. Project was 25% 
complete at the end of March 2014 and is expected to be 
completed by the end of August 2014. 

Phase 1A Stage 2A Civil Engineering Services (20 ha) Contract awarded in February 2014. Construction commenced 
in March 2014 and is expected to be completed by 
December 2014.

Phase 1A Stage 2A Electrical Engineering & ICT Services (20 ha) Contract awarded in February 2014. Construction to commence 
in May 2014 and is expected to be completed by December 
2014.

Phase 1A Entrance Gate & Customs Control Area Design commenced in March 2014 with construction expected 
to commence in September 2014.

Detail design of engineering services for Phase 1F Design team appointed in November 2013. Design could not 
commence due to wetland impacts in Phase 1F that is subject 
to a Water Use Licence approval. Design is only expected to 
commence in September 2014

Performance Information ...continued
PART B:
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Capital Plan Variances
Two projects that were planned to be completed in the 2013/14 fi nancial year were not completed. These are:

• Phase 1A Stage 1 Electrical Engineering & ICT Services project that was planned to be completed by the end of March 
2014 could not be initiated due to delayed approval of the designs by the Municipality. The approval of the design 
was received on  the 11 July 2013. Tenders were advertised on 25 July 2013 with the tender award taking place on 10 
October 2013. With a nine month construction programme, the completion date is now expected to be in August 2014.

• Detail design of engineering services for Phase 1F was planned for completion by the end of March 2014. The 
detail design could not commence due to the wetland impacts in Phase 1F despite the appointment of a service 
provider in November 2013. The utilisation of wetland areas in Phase 1F has to be resolved through obtaining a 
Water Use Licence in terms of the National Water Act. It is expected that the license will be received by the end of 
February 2015 where after the detail design process can commence for completion by the end of August 2015.

Maintenance of Infrastructure
Maintenance activities have commenced for Phase 1A perimeter fence and Phase 1A Stage 1 Bulk Earthworks platform. 
Multi-year services contracts are in place to undertake preventative maintenance activities that were scheduled for the 
fi nancial year.

Preventative maintenance activities have also been planned for the completed Phase 1A Stage 1 Civil Engineering 
Infrastructure in the 2014/15 fi nancial year.
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Governance
PART C:

1. Introduction
The RBIDZ has established a solid corporate governance 
framework through a Funding Agreement with the 
Executive Authority (which also fulfi ls the function of 
a Shareholder Compact) and has in place a Board 
charter as well as charters for each of the Board’s four 
committees. The executive management is also governed 
by a charter. The reporting protocols are well structured 
throughout the organisation. 

2. Executive Authority
The entity reports to the DEDT against the set targets 
in the Annual Performance Plan (APP) on a quarterly 
basis. Written reports are submitted 15 days after the end 
of the quarter and a meeting to discuss the reports is 
organised by the DEDT after the reports are submitted. 
All 4 reports were submitted timeously to DEDT and the 
CEO or Acting CEO attended all 4 meetings to discuss 
progress against set targets.

3. The Accounting 
Authority / Board 
The Board has an independent role with accountability 
to the shareholder and the Company and is responsible 
as the primary oversight body of the Company. The 
Board appreciates that strategy, risk, performance and 
sustainability are inseparable and gives effect to this by 
contributing to and approving the strategy, satisfying itself 
that the strategy and business plans do not give rise to risks 
that have not been thoroughly assessed by management, 
identifying key performance and risk areas and ensuring 
that the strategy will result in sustainable outcomes.

4. The role of the Board 
The Board members have the specifi c responsibilities 
set out in the PFMA, the Companies Act and the King 
III Report on Corporate Governance, including the duty 
of utmost care to ensure reasonable protection of the 
assets and records of the Company; to act with fi delity, 
honesty, integrity and in the best interests of the Company 
in managing the fi nancial affairs of the Company; on 
request to disclose to the Executive Authority responsible 
for the Company or the Legislature to which the Company 
is accountable, all material facts, including those 
reasonably discoverable, which in any way may infl uence 
the decisions or actions of the Executive Authority or 
Legislature; to act as the focal point for, and custodian of, 
corporate governance by managing its relationship with 
management, the shareholder and other stakeholders 
of the Company along sound corporate governance 
principles; to ensure that the Company is and is seen 
to be a responsible corporate citizen by having regard 
to not only the fi nancial aspects of the business of the 
Company but also the impact that business operations 
have on the environment and the society within which it 
operates; to be responsible for the governance of risk; to 
be responsible for information technology (IT) governance; 
to ensure that the Company complies with applicable 
laws and considers adherence to non-binding rules and 
standards; to ensure the integrity of the Company’s Annual 
Report and to appoint and evaluate the performance 
of the CEO.

The Board acts collectively and does not assume the 
functions of Management, which remains the responsibility 
of the executive directors, offi cers and other members of 
senior management.
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5. Board Charter 
The Board has adopted a Board Charter setting out its roles and responsibilities. The Board Charter was reviewed by the 
Board during the course of the year under review.

Composition of the Board

Name Designation Date 
appointed 

Date 
resigned

Qualifi cations Area of 
Expertise

Board
Directorships 

(List the 
entities)

Other 
Committees 
(e.g: Audit 

committee)

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Ms PB Kunene Chairperson 1/7/2012 - BA, BA Honours 
(Econ), 
MSc (Dev 
Economics)

Management, 
banking, 
public sector 

San Parks, 
Barahaka 
Investments;

6

Mr MC Clark Deputy 
Chairperson

1/7/2012 - BSc Soc, Pg Dip Management, 
public sector, 
governance

KZN Growth 
Fund 
Managers;
Black Balance 
Projects;
Market Demand 
Trading 429;
Global Pact 
Trading 545;
Aquaquad;
Vuka Planning 
Africa;
Black Balance 
Logistics;
Black Balance 
Investments;
Black Balance 
Consulting;
Imvusa Trading 
230;
Coalition 
Trading 596;
Dube Tradeport;
The Stables 
Wine Estate 
Airport Cellar;
Ventureworx

Chairperson 
of Human 
Resources and 
Remuneration 
Committee, 
Member of 
Audit and Risk 
Committee

5
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Governance ...continued
PART C:

5. Board Charter ...continued

Name Designation Date 
appointed 

Date 
resigned

Qualifi cations Area of 
Expertise

Board
Directorships 

(List the 
entities)

Other 
Committees 
(e.g: Audit 

committee)

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Ms TN Eboka Member 1/7/2012 - BS (Appl 
Mathematics), 
BS (Textile 
Engineering), 
MBA, Senior 
Executive 
Programme 
(Harvard), 
Certifi cate 
in Change 
Management 
(Cornell)

Management, 
engineering

The Soweto 
Heritage 
Company;
Greatstone;
Agriaids SA;
E2 Impact 
Investments;
Stefanutti Stocks 
Holdings;
K2013181850 
(South Africa);

Grange 
Investments;
Dyambu 
Holdings; 
Innovage IT 
Investments;
Seven Seasons 
Trading 90;
Clifton Dunes 
Investments 
66; Kwezi Small 
Enterprise 
Development 
Agency;
Manchana 
Engineering 
And 
Construction 
Company;
Indra 
Technology 
South Africa;
Manchana 
Engineering 
And 
Construction 
Company

Chairperson of 
Infrastructure 
Committee

4
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Name Designation Date 
appointed 

Date 
resigned

Qualifi cations Area of 
Expertise

Board
Directorships 

(List the 
entities)

Other 
Committees 
(e.g: Audit 

committee)

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr ZL Fihlani Member 1/7/2012 - B.Com, 
BCompt 
(Hons), CTA, 
H.Dip in Tax 
Law, M.Comm 
(Tax), CA (SA)

Management, 
auditing, 
fi nance

EVI Capital 
Partners;
Pelchem;
Export Credit 
Insurance 
Corporation Of 
South Africa;
Mountain 
Heritage Lodge 
And Resorts;
Siyalungisa 
Properties;
Furnways Capital;
Fihlani 
Investments;
Furnways Lodge 
And Resorts;
Furnways 
Properties;
Evidence Capital 
Manco;
Evicap Advisory
Evidence Capital 
Fund 3 Gp;
Evidence Capital; 
Mezzanine Fund 
Gp;
Furnways Auto;
Arturo Calle 
Clothing South 
Africa;
Evidence Capital 
Fund 4 Gp;
Evidence Capital 
Fund 2 Gp;
Neema Africa 
Holdings;
Jozi Liquor 
Distributors;
Lusikisiki Liquor 
Distributors;
Flagstaff Liquor 
Distributors;
Xaxazele 
Properties;
Night Breeze 
Investments 205;
EVI Capital 
Foundation;
EVI Capital 
Facilities Trading;
EVI Pig Farms;
EVI Livestock 
Farms;
EVI Poultry Farms;

Chairperson
Audit and Risk 
Committee

5,5



38 RICHARDS  BAY  INDUSTRIAL  DEVELOPMENT  ZONE  (RBIDZ)

Board Charter
The Board has adopted a Board Charter setting out its roles and responsibilities.

Name Designation Date 
appointed 

Date 
resigned

Qualifi cations Area of 
Expertise

Board
Directorships 

(List the 
entities)

Other 
Committees 
(e.g: Audit 

committee)

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr AA 
Mahlalutye

Member 1/7/2012 - B,Sc (QS), MBL, 
Dip Company 
Direction, M(Fin 
Mgt), Certifi cate 
in Development 
and 
Management of 
NGO’s (Gallilee 
College)

Management, 
Economic 
Zones,
Finance, Local 
Government 
and 
Engineering.

Ubudlelwane 
Capital 
Investments; Board 
Member of the 
Ports Regulator 
of South Africa, 
Member of the 
Free State Audit 
Committee;
Ulwazi Lunzulu 
Consult

Social 
and Ethics 
Committee

4

Mr AS 
Makhanya

Member 1/7/2012 - B.Com. Dip 
(Eng), HDip 
(Eng), Dip 
(Marketing 
Mgt).

Management, 
engineering, 
water and 
effl uent 
services

Ndu And Sbunhle 
Investments;
Abaphumeleli 
Trading 269;
Sbunhle Trading;
MKM Investments 
And Trading

Social 
and Ethics 
Committee

4,5

Mr D 
Mathfi eld

Member 1/7/2012 5/03/2014 B.Soc Sci, M 
(Town and 
Regional 
Planning), B.Soc 
Sci (Hons), 
M.Soc Sci

Economic 
development

Infrastructure 
Committee

5

Mr EF 
Mbatha1

Member 23/6/2008 
and 
1/7/2012

- BA degree 
and a Master’s 
Degree in 
Governance 
and Political 
Transformation

Management, 
local 
government

Bhambhatha 
Investments;
Musa Dladla 
Foundation, 
Rumdu 
Construction;
Ubhedu Holdings;
Kuzakahle Trading;
Bitline SA 797;
Esikhawini Traders;
Cleancing 
Laboratory;
Tradebush 
Investments No 27;
Business Against 
Crime Zululand

Chairperson 
of Social 
and Ethics 
Committee

6

Mr K 
Naidoo

Member 1/7/2012 - B.Com, Cert 
(Comp Aud), 

Finance, 
management

HR and 
Remuneration 
Committee

6

Ms MJ 
Ndlovu

Member 1/7/2012 - N.Dip HR 
Management, 
Diploma 
Transportation 
Management, 
BTech HR 
Management 
and MBA

Management Ndlovu and Co 
Holding;
The South African 
Dental Association;
Lamentation 
Creation;
King George 
V Hospital; 
Mangosuthu 
University of 
Technology

Audit and Risk 
Committee

6

B d Ch

Governance ...continued
PART C:
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Name Designation Date 
appointed 

Date 
resigned

Qualifi cations Area of 
Expertise

Board
Directorships 

(List the 
entities)

Other 
Committees 
(e.g: Audit 

committee)

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mrs MTB 
Ndlovu

Member 1/7/2012 - LL.B, 
Conveyancing,
Cert (Local Govrt 
Mgt)

Law of 
Property, 
Human Rights 
Law and Local 
Government 
Law

Mbasa 
Corporate 
Advisory 
Services

HR and 
Remuneration 
Committee

4,5

Ms NG 
Sithole 

Member 1/7/2012 - BCom, LLB, MBA Management, 
logistics

Up-Front 
Investments 
165;
Thekweni Open 
For Business; 
Legapa 
Investment 
Holdings

Infrastructure 
Committee

2

Mr BV 
Khumalo1

Chairperson 13/2/2009. 27/5/2013 B.A (Ed), B.A. 
(Honours) and 
M.Sc. (Maritime 
and Transport 
Management)

Transport 
and logistics, 
management

2

Mr P 
Motsoahae

CEO 1/12/2013 B.A. Administration; 
Masters in Town 
and Regional 
Planning; Post-
Graduate Diploma 
in Shipping, 
Transportation 
and Logistics 
– International 
Maritime and 
Transport Academy 
(Rotterdam, 
Netherlands) 
and Executive 
Development 
Program – 
Supply-chain 
Management. 

Transport 
and logistics, 
management

Basia Afrique 
Artifacts; 
Seruisa Gems;
Qalo 
Consulting 
Services;Qedo 
Consulting 
Services.

1

Mr M 
Nkopane

CFO 05/10/2012 - B.Com, MBL, 
Management 
Advancement 
Programme 
Certifi cate

Management, 
Finance

Mohato 
Trading

6

1 - Directors commencing prior to 1/7/2013.
2 – Excludes meetings attended as observer.
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Governance ...continued
PART C:

Remuneration of Board Members
The remuneration of directors is determined by the shareholder.  The Company reimburses/does bookings for directors 
other than those in the employ of Government Departments.

1  A provision has been raised based on MEC approved board remuneration
2  No remuneration paid as they are senior government offi cials representing the DED or the dti
3  Remuneration paid to Transnet Foundation

NAME Audit and Risk 
(5 Meetings)

HR and 
Remuneration
(6 Meetings) 

Infrastructure
(3 Meetings)

Social and Ethics
(2 Meetings)

Ceo Search
(2 Meetings)

Capacity Attendance Capacity Attendance Capacity Attendance Capacity Attendance Capacity Attendance

Ms B Kunene
(Chairperson)

Mr M Clark 
(Deputy 
Chairperson) Member 5 Chairperson 6 Chairperson 2

Ms T Eboka Chairperson 3 Member 1

Mr Z Fihlani Chairperson 5

Mr A Mahlalutye Member 2 Member 1

Mr S Makhanya Member 2

Mr D Mathfi eld1 Member 0

Mr E Mbatha Chairperson 1

Mr K Naidoo Invitee 5 Member 6 Member 1

Ms MJ Ndlovu Member 4

Mrs MTB Ndlovu Member 5 Member 1

Ms N Sithole Member 2

Mr P Motsoahae2

(CEO)
Invitee 1 Invitee 1 Invitee 1

Mr M Nkopane3 

(CFO)
Invitee 5 Invitee 5 Invitee 2 Invitee 1

Mr S Mkhize4 Member 2

1.  Resigned on 5 March 2014
2.  Appointed on 1 December 2013
3.  Attended certain meetings in capacity as Acting CEO
4.  Member of Infrastructure Committee who is not a director

Name Remuneration 
(R)

Other allowance
(R)

Other re-imbursements
(R)

Total
(R)

Ms B Kunene1 (Chairperson) 581,315 - - 581,315

Mr M Clark (Deputy Chairperson) 393,162 - - 393,162

Ms T Eboka 197,081 - - 197,081

Mr Z Fihlani 209,497 - - 209,497

Mr A Mahlalutye 123,379 - - 123,379

Mr S Makhanya 122,213 - - 122,213

Mr D Mathfi eld2 - - - -

Mr E Mbatha 156,732 - - 156,732

Mr K Naidoo2 - - - -

Ms MJ Ndlovu 160,785 - - 160,785

Mrs MTB Ndlovu 158,061 - - 158,061

Ms N Sithole3 65,025 - - 65,025

Mr P Motsoahae (CEO) 739,279 22,378 761,657

Mr M R Nkopane (CFO) 1,038,327 1,050,825 60,689 2,149,841
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6. Risk Management
Risk Management plays an important and multi-faceted 
role in analysing an increasing risk aversion in developing 
organisations such as the RBIDZ, and to explain better 
the contributions of insurance to welfare in emerging 
economies through public-private cooperation. Risk 
practitioners seek in particular to understand the 
nature of emerging and key strategic risks stemming 
from societal, business operations and technological 
developments (e.g. cyber security).

Risk management is entrenched within the organisation 
with full involvement and support at executive level. The 
RBIDZ has established a formal regime of dealing with risk 
management. An Annual Risk Action Plan was compiled 
and an annual risk assessment conducted shortly after 
compiling an Annual Performance Plan. All executive 
managers are risk champions for the operational risks 
emanating from their Business Units. The Executive 
Committee (EXCO) also serves as a Risk Committee and 
risk management is a standing agenda item in all EXCO 
meetings. The challenge of being expected to do more 
with less fi nancial and human resources has become the 
status quo at all levels of government in South Africa. The 
current environment of national fi scal restraint makes an 
already diffi cult job even more challenging, and means 
every decision must be scrutinized more carefully.  This 
restraint calls for innovation and transformation in order 
to address the implications for risk management when 
the stakes are raised, results more closely scrutinized, 
and resources reduced.

7. Internal Audit and Audit 
Committee
The Company has adopted an Internal Audit Charter 
setting out that the internal audit function is an 
independent appraisal function established within the 
Company to examine and evaluate the Company’s 
processes as a service to the Company in the effective 
discharge of its responsibilities. Its objectives include 

promoting effective risk management and operational 
effi ciency at reasonable cost, in accordance with the 
standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Audit 
established by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA). 

The internal audit function evaluates inter alia governance 
processes; assesses the effectiveness of risk management; 
analyses and evaluates business processes and controls; 
provides information on fraud, corruption, unethical 
behaviour and irregularities and reports to the Audit and 
Risk Committee.  

The Company has entered into an arrangement with the 
Internal Audit Unit of the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Treasury 
whereby the unit performs the Internal Audit function 
of the Company. The Company is wholly satisfi ed that 
the arrangement ensures the objectivity of the Internal 
Audit function. During the year, 12 audits including 
follow-up audits and one special audit were conducted. 
The audits covered quarterly performance information, 
Business Development and Marketing; SHEQ; Supply 
Chain Management and a general control review while 
follow-up audits were conducted on asset management; 
key financial controls; Infrastructure, Planning and 
Development; compliance monitoring and human 
resource management. The special audit was conducted 
on the performance assessments of staff members. 

The Functions of the Audit and Risk Committee are set 
out in a Committee Charter which is based on the 
recommendations of the King III Report on Corporate 
Governance issued by the Institute of Directors. The 
key functions of the Committee are to assist the Board 
in fulfi lling its oversight functions in terms of the PFMA, 
including to assist the Board, CEO and Executive 
Management in carrying out their functions as prescribed 
in sections 51(1), 76(4)(d) and 77 of the PFMA; Regulation 
3.1.8 and 27.1 of the Treasury Regulations made in terms 
of the PFMA, the Companies act, 2008 (Act No 71 of 2008) 
and best practice in regard to Corporate governance, as 
set out in the King III Report on Corporate Governance. 
The Audit and Risk Committee evaluates the adequacy 
and effi ciency of the internal control systems, accounting 
practices, information systems and auditing processes. 
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Governance ...continued
PART C:

Audit and Risk Committee

Name Qualifi cations Internal or external If internal, position in 
the public entity

Date 
appointed

End of 
Appointment

Mr Z Fihlani 
(Chairperson)

B.Com, BCompt (Hons), 
CTA, H.Dip in Tax Law, 
M.Comm (Tax), CA (SA)

External Non-executive director 05/10/2012

Mr MC Clark BSc Soc, Pg Dip External Non-executive director 05/10/2012

Ms MJ Ndlovu N.Dip HR Management, 
Diploma Transportation 
Management, BTech HR 
Management 
and MBA

External Non-executive director 05/10/2012

8. Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The Legal Manager/Company Secretary is responsible for the Compliance Function. The Company has adopted a 
comprehensive Compliance Policy. The Company has a Legal Register. Research is conducted on applicable laws and 
various open source databases used to determine upcoming legislation as well as relevant judgments. 

Checklists are compiled on key legislation, with the checklists in new areas being prioritised using a risk-based approach. 

Compliance issues are reported to the Board through the Audit and Risk Committee on a quarterly basis.

9. Fraud and Corruption  
The Company has adopted a comprehensive Fraud Prevention Policy incorporating various elements of a Fraud Prevention 
Plan. This includes a response plan to allegations of fraud and corruption, probity investigations of key prospective staff 
and even suppliers, creating an open and transparent culture, protection of whistle blowers, annual declarations of 
fi nancial interests as well as declarations at certain meetings, mandatory reporting of gifts and gratuities received by staff 
and encouragement of staff to report suspected fraud and corruption. All tender committees meetings are recorded. 

A whistleblowing hotline is in place and the policy provides for the persons to whom fraud is to be reported. Where fraud 
is reported the policy provides for the investigation of the matter by a person independent of the division in which the 
fraud is suspected and which may, where senior managers or directors are suspected of fraud, include outside parties. 
The policy also prescribes how suspected cases of fraud are to be reported and what action should be taken. 
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10. Minimising Confl ict 
of Interest

The Company has various policies in place which 
are intended to ensure that any potential confl icts 
of interest are disclosed so that informed decisions 
can be taken to preclude a confl icted person from 
infl uencing or participating in a decision on behalf of 
the Company. Where confl icts of interest do arise the 
persons concerned are required to recuse themselves 
from the proceedings concerned. 

The Code of Conduct, Fraud Prevention Policy and 
Supply Chain Policy all contain provisions to reduce 
the opportunities for confl icts of interest. Directors and 
staff all complete a Declaration of Interest Form on an 
annual basis as well as when any material information in 
the Declaration of Interest Form changes. A Declarations 
of Interest book is distributed at all Board and Committee 
meetings as well as at all internal meetings of the 
Company, including  all meetings which form part of 
the Supply Chain Management process. Declarations of 
Interest is a standard item on all Board, Committee and 
Management meeting agendas.  All persons submitting 
tenders to the Company are also required to disclose 
any potential confl icts of interest of which they are aware.  

With regard to external parties; the acquisition process 
requires that potential service providers complete 
and sign a declaration of interest and be returned as 
an attachment with tender document. Any alleged 
misappropriate behaviour whether arising from internal 
or external parties is dealt with, in accordance with 
procedures and other policies in place. 

11. Code of Conduct 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct which 
is applicable to all directors and staff and is intended to 
guide the behaviour that the Company expects in its 
interaction with all internal and external stakeholders, 
with special emphasis on the interactions of internal 
stakeholders with each other and with the communities 
within which the Company operates.  The Code of 
Conduct seeks to ensure that behaviour is guided 
by socially established principles of honesty, fairness, 
accountability, non-discrimination and respect for human 
dignity. 

The Code of Conduct requires staff members to report 
dishonest activities and provides for the investigation of all 
infringements of the Code, followed by taking appropriate 
remedial action, which may include disciplinary action, 
termination of relationships with a supplier or taking steps 
to prevent a reoccurrence.  
 

12. Health Safety and
Environmental Issues

The accelerated implementation of infrastructural 
development projects in RBIDZ Phase 1A imposed 
a more cautious and diligent approach in ensuring 
management of project impacts on the environment.

During the reporting period, 3 infrastructural projects 
were implemented on site and contractors were 
required to identify and mitigate health, safety and 
environmental risks associated with their activities through 
the development of SHE Management Plan. SHE audits 
were conducted on all construction projects to ensure 
compliance with the SHE Management Plans and any 
deviations were corrected, recorded and managed 
through the company’s non-conformance management 
system. External SHE auditing of the projects was also 
conducted by the Department of Environmental Affairs 
and Department of Labour to enforce compliance with 
their respective legislations.

On safety management, the company achieved a 
total of 245 914 man hours without an injury on all 
construction projects. This was achieved mainly through 
job observations, comprehensive risk assessments, 
toolbox talks, inspections, internal auditing and other 
contractor management initiatives. In December 2013, 
RBIDZ in conjunction with our suppliers invited the local 
Department of Health to engage our contractors on HIV 
testing (including pre and post counselling), cholesterol 
level testing, blood glucose testing, and associated 
general health advice and support.

In pursuit for environmentally sustainable development, 
the RBIDZ developed, as part of the Master Plan, 
Environmental Sustainability Framework which entailed 
environmental due diligence assessment of all RBDIZ 
Phases. The framework aimed at giving surety to the RBIDZ, 
and a level of comfort to environmental authorities and 
other stakeholders, that: 
• reasonable care has been taken in preparing the      
   Master Plan, 
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• that signifi cant environmental risks have been avoided in preparation of the plan and strategy
• that measures are in place to control any potential risks that may arise as a result of implementation, and 
• that the RBIDZ is prepared to deal with regional sustainability issues.

The RBIDZ received environmental authorisation for Medway road expansion project.  

13. Company / Board Secretary
The Company’s Legal Advisor serves as its Company Secretary, with functions which include: Being the central source 
of guidance and advice to Board and within company on matters of good governance and changes in legislation; 
responsibility for Board and Committee Charters; preparation of the annual work plan and meeting schedule; circulation 
of Board and Committee papers; induction, orientation and on-going training of directors; ensuring returns are provided 
to the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission; recording, approval and circulation of minutes and assisting 
with Board evaluations. 

Certifi cation by Company Secretary

I, the undersigned, KN Harvey, in my capacity as Company Secretary, certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the 
Company has lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission all such returns as are required of a 
state-owned company in terms of the Companies Act, and that all such returns are, to the best of my knowledge and 
belief, true, correct and up to date.

KN Harvey
Company Secretary

14. Social Responsibility
The RBIDZ embarked on different Corporate Social Responsibility projects in environmental sustainability, community 
development as well as youth development through outreach programmes to the schools and community organisations. 
The entity focused mainly on rural schools and needy communities. The Company, among other things, donated desks 
to Swana Special School, school uniforms to Mbabe Primary School and sports kits to Isiphephelo High School. It further 
renovated a local Hope Day Care Centre and bought teachers’ manuals to be utilised by some of the schools.

Governance ...continued
PART C:



45ANNUAL  REPORT  2013/2014

15. Audit Committee Report
We are pleased to present our report for the fi nancial 
year ended 31 March 2014.

Audit and Risk Committee Responsibility
The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has complied 
with its responsibilities arising from section 76 and 77 
of the PFMA, Treasury Regulation 27.1. of the Treasury 
Regulations made in terms of the PFMA (GG 27388) 
and section 94(7) of the Companies Act, 2008 (Act No. 
71 of 2008). 

The Committee has adopted an appropriate formal 
terms of reference, namely  its Audit and Risk Committee 
Charter. It has regulated its affairs in compliance with 
this Charter and has discharged all its responsibilities 
as contained therein. 
 
The Effectiveness of Internal Control
We are satisfi ed, based on the assessment of the entity’s 
Internal Auditors, that the entity has adequate controls 
in place.  

Our review of the fi ndings of the Internal Audit work, which 
was based on the risk assessments conducted in the 
public entity revealed certain weaknesses, which were 
then raised with the public entity.

The following internal audit work was completed during 
the year under review: 
• Audits on quarterly performance information,Business 
 Development and Marketing; SHEQ; Supply Chain 
 Management and a general control review;
• Follow-up audits on asset management; key fi nancial 
 controls; Infrastructure, Planning and Development; 
 compliance monitoring and human resource 
 management; and
• A special audit was conducted on the performance
 assessments of staff members. 

The following internal audit work was conducted during 
the year under review but only completed and considered 
by the Committee after the end of the review period
• Audits on quarterly performance information, Business 
 Development and Marketing; SHEQ; Supply Chain 
 Management and a general control review;
• Follow-up audits on asset management; key fi nancial 
 controls; Infrastructure, Planning and Development; 
 compliance monitoring and human resource 
 management; and

• A special audit was conducted on the performance
  assessments of staff members. 

The only planned audit not conducted was a follow-up 
audit on Infrastructure, Planning and Development which 
was not conducted because of delays in fi nalising the 
initial report. 

All issues raised by the Internal Auditors were either 
addressed by Management or in the process of being 
addressed at the end of the fi nancial year. 

In-Year Management and Monthly/
Quarterly Report
The public entity has submitted monthly and quarterly 
reports to the Executive Authority as well as to the 
Department of Trade and Industry. Most of these reports 
were audited by the previous External Auditors and/or 
by the Internal Auditors and the Committee is satisfi ed 
with the quality of these Management Reports. 

Evaluation of Financial Statements
We have reviewed the annual fi nancial statements 
prepared by the public entity.

Auditor’s Report
The Company appointed a new External Auditor for the 
year under review after the expiry of the appointment 
period of the previous External Auditor. The Committee 
is satisfi ed of the Independence of the External Auditor.  

We have reviewed the public entity’s implementation 
plan for audit issues raised in the prior year and we are 
satisfi ed that the matters have been adequately resolved.

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the 
conclusions of the External Auditor on the Annual 
Financial Statements and is of the opinion that the 
audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and 
read together with the report of the auditor.

Zolani Fihlani
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee
Date: 18 July 2014
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Human Resource Management
PART D:

1. Introduction 
Corporate Services Unit is responsible for ensuring effective human resources management and development. Among 
its functions HR must strengthen employer - employee relationships in order to maximise employee performance in 
achieving the RBIDZ’s strategic objectives. HR not only manages existing staff but it also plans for changes that will affect 
future staffi ng needs.  

The RBIDZ has a total number of 26 employees, 3 interns in its employ and 10 vacant positions. The Company has also 
trained and developed staff timeously and conducts market surveys in order to pay market related salaries to staff 
members.
The number of HR approved policies has increased from 16 in 2012/13 to 19 in 2013/14.  

2. Human Resource Oversight Statistics
Personnel Cost by Business Units 

Business Units Total Budget for the 
Business Unit (exc. VAT) 

(R’000)

Personnel Expenditure 

(R’000)

Personnel exp. as a % 
of total budget

No. of employees

Offi ce of the CEO  23,178 4,219 18,2 5
IPD  5,726 1,857 32,4 2
BDM 5,644 2,409 42,7 3
SHEQ 3,729 1,438 38,6 1
Finance 10,812 4,569 42,3 8
Corporate Services 5,477 2,675 48,8 7
TOTAL  54,566 17,168 31,5 26

Personnel cost by salary band

Salary Bands Personnel Expenditure 
(R’000)

% of personnel exp. to 
total personnel cost

No. of employees

Top Management [Bands D4 –E4] 8,110 47.2 6
Senior Management [Bands D1-D3] 6,559 38.2 10
Skilled [Bands C1-C5] 1,541 9 5
Semi-Skilled [Bands A1-B5] 958 5.6 5
TOTAL 17,168 100 26

Performance Rewards

Salary Bands Performance Rewards
(R’000)

Personnel Expenditure 
(R’000)

% of performance 
rewards  to total 
personnel cost 

Top Management*[Bands D4 –E4] 1,851 8,110 22,8
Senior Management [Bands D1-D3] 632 6,559 9.6
Skilled [Bands C1-C5] 235 1,541 15.2
Semi-Skilled [Bands A1-B5] 79 958 8.2
TOTAL 2,797 17,168 16,3

*Includes former CEO Bonus for 2009/10- 10/11-11/12 years
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Business Units Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure

(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure as a % 
of Personnel Cost

No. of employees 
trained

Avg training  cost 
per employe

(R’000)

Offi ce of the CEO 4,219 52 1,2 3 17

IPD 1,857 10 0,01 2 5

BDM 2,409 59 2,4 4 15

SHEQ 1,438   16 0,01 2 8

Finance 4,569    45 0,9 3 15

Corporate Services 2,675    68 0,03 6 11

TOTAL 17,168 250 0.01 20 12

Employment and vacancies

Business Units 2012/2013 2013/2014
 Approved Posts

2013/2014
No. of Employees

2013/2014
Vacancies

% of 
Vacancies

Offi ce of the CEO 6 6 5 1 16.7

IPD 2 5 2 3 60

BDM 1 4 3 1 25

SHEQ 2 3 1 2 67

Finance 8 10 8 2 20

Corporate Services 7 8 7 1 12,5

TOTAL 26 36 26 10 27,78

Employment and vacancies

Salary Bands 2012/2013 2013/2014
 Approved 

Posts

2013/2014
No. of 

Employees

2013/2014
Vacancies

% of 
Vacancies

Top Management [Bands D4 –E4] 4 8 6 2 25

Senior Management [Bands D1-D3] 11 13 10 3 23

Skilled [Bands C1-C5] 6 8 5 3 37

Semi-Skilled [Bands A1-B5] 5 7 5 2 28

TOTAL 26 36 26 10 27,7

Training Costs 
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Annual Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

1. Statement of responsibility and confi rmation of accuracy 
for the annual report

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confi rm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the annual fi nancial statements audited 
by the Independent External Auditors.

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued by 
National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting 
Standards applicable to the public entity. 

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual fi nancial statements and for the judgements 
made in this information.  

The accounting authority is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control has been 
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human 
resources information and the annual fi nancial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual fi nancial statements.

In our opinion, the annual report fairly refl ects the operations, the performance information, the human resources 
information and the fi nancial affairs of the public entity for the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2014.

Yours faithfully 

Phumelele Motsoahae
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Date: 30 July 2014

PART E:

Bongiwe Kunene
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD 
Date: 30 July 2014
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Financial Statements
The annual fi nancial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards as required by the South African Companies Act. They are based on appropriate accounting  policies, 
which have been consistently applied and which are supported by reasonable  and prudent judgments and estimates.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of annual fi nancial statements that fairly present the state of affairs and 
the results of the company. The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on these annual 
fi nancial statements,  in conformity with International Standards on Auditing.

Internal Controls
The board of directors is responsible for the company’s systems of internal control. These systems are designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the fi nancial statements and to safeguard 
and maintain accountability of its assets and to detect and minimise signifi cant fraud, potential liability, loss and material 
misstatement while complying with applicable laws and regulations. The controls concentrate on critical risk areas. These 
areas are identifi ed by operational  management and are monitored by the directors. All controls relating to the critical risk 
areas are closely monitored and subject to internal audit. Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that 
a material breakdown in the controls within the company has occurred during the year.

Performance Management
The company reports on its own performance against pre-determined objectives as contained in the Annual Performance 
Plan for 2013/14 fi nancial year and in accordance with the Public Finance Management Act 29 of 1999 as amended. 
The performance report is tabled on quarterly basis to the following structures; Audit & Risk Management, the Accounting 
Authority (RBIDZ Board) and the Executive Authority (Department of Economic Development & Tourism). The performance 
report is contained in Part B of this report. 

Board Remuneration
The remuneration of directors and senior managers is set out in note 17 to the Annual Financial Statements.

The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 54 to 76, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 
approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf by:

Date: 30 July 2014Bongiwe Kunene
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD 

Statement of Responsibility by the Directors
PART E:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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Introduction
We have audited the fi nancial statements of Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Company SOC Limited, which 
comprise the statement of fi nancial position as at 31 March 2014, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash fl ows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of signifi cant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Accounting Authority’s responsibility for the fi nancial statements
The board of directors which constitutes the accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 
of these fi nancial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required 
by the Companies Act 71 of 2008 of South Africa, as amended and the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999, as 
amended, and for such internal control as the accounting authority determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
fi nancial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, the General Notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards 
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the fi nancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the fi nancial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the fi nancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the fi nancial position of Richards Bay Industrial 
Development Zone Company SOC Limited as at 31 March 2014, and its fi nancial performance and its cash fl ows for the 
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Public 
Finance Management Act and the Companies Act 71 of 2008 of South Africa.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, we report the following fi ndings relevant to 
performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and internal controls but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion.

NGUBANE & CO. 
Chartered Accountants (SA)
18th Floor, Redefi ne Towers, 320 West Street, 
Durban, 4001
Tel:  +27 31 307 4794 • Fax: +27 31 307 4796
e-mail: dbn@ngubane.co.za • www.ngubane.co.za

Report of the External Auditor  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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Predetermined objectives
We performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in the annual performance 
report contained in the annual report.

The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of usefulness and 
reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual performance report relates to whether it is presented in accordance with 
National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance is consistent with planned objectives. 
The usefulness of information further relates to whether indications and targets are measurable and relevant as required by 
the National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information.

The reliability of the information in respect of the objectives is assessed to determine whether is adequately refl ects the facts 
(i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete).

There were no material fi ndings on the annual performance report concerning the usefulness and reliability of the information.

Compliance with laws and regulations
We performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations regarding 
fi nancial matters, fi nancial management and other related matters. We did not identify any instances of material non-
compliance with specifi c matters in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in the General Notice issued in terms of 
the PAA.

Internal control
We considered internal control relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements and compliance with laws and regulations. 
We did not identify any defi ciencies in internal control that we considered suffi ciently signifi cant for inclusion in this report.

Ngubane & Co.
Per Desmond Msomi
Registered Auditor
30 July 2014 
Durban

Report of the External Auditor  
PART E:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report on the activities of the company for the year ended  
31 March  2014.

Nature of Business and Operations
Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Company SOC Limited was formed to undertake the development of 
industrial land in the Richards Bay area.

Financial Results
The results for the year are refl ected in the statement of comprehensive income set out on page 56. In summary the 
company had an operating loss of R9 387 685  for the fi nancial year, which after tax and interest resulted in a  loss of 
R760 168. 

Share Capital
Richards Bay Industrial Develpoment Zone Company SOC Limited has 1000 authorised and issued share capital. The 
share capital is as follows:

1000 shares: Province of Kwazulu Natal represented by its Department of Economic Development and Tourism.

Board of Directors

External Auditors
Ngubane & Co.

Internal Auditors
KZN Provincial Treasury: Internal Audit Services.

Directorate Date appointed Date of resignation

Mr. V Khumalo 13 February 2009 27 May 2013
Ms. B Kunene (Chairperson) 1 July 2012
Mr. M Clark (Deputy Chairperson) 1 July 2012
Ms. T Eboka 1 July 2012
Mr. Z Fihlani 1 July 2012
Mr. A Mahlalutye 1 July 2012
Mr. S Makhanya 1 July 2012
Mr. D Mathfi eld 1 July 2012 5 March 2014
Mr. E Mbatha 23 June 2008
Mr. K Naidoo 1 July 2012
Ms. J Ndlovu 1 July 2012
Ms. M Ndlovu 1 July 2012
Ms. N Sithole 1 July 2012

Mr. P Motsoahae (CEO) 1 December 2013

Mr. M Nkopane (CFO) 5 October 2012

Report of the Directors
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014



54 RICHARDS  BAY  INDUSTRIAL  DEVELOPMENT  ZONE  (RBIDZ)

Secretary
The Company Secretary is Advocate KN Harvey.

Business address:     Postal address :
Captains Walk Building     Private Bag X1005
Pioneer Road       Richards Bay
Tuzi Gazi Waterfront     3900
Richards Bay
3900

Going Concern
On the basis of the annual fi nancial statements for 2013/14 fi nancial period and information regarding the forthcoming 
fi nancial year, the directors have every reason to believe that the Company remain a going concern. 

Subsequent Event
The Company has successfully defended a plaintiffs claim that the former employee of the Company, orally agreed, on 
behalf of the Company, to purchase its portion of land for use as part of the RBIDZ.

Information Disclosed in Terms of Section 55(2)(b) of the PFMA
Particulars of irregular expenditure incurred by the company in respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 are disclosed in 
Note 19 of the annual fi nancial statements.

PART E:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Report of the Directors
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Statement of Financial Position 

2014 2013

Notes R R
ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 7 860 16 905 
Deposit 4  201 116  201 116 

Current assets 520 181 948 454 880 441 
Accounts receivable 5  58 890 531  59 058 769 
Cash and cash equivalents 6  461 176 479  394 946 567 
Deferred taxation 7  114 937  875 105 

Total assets 520 390 924 455 098 462 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves  151 205 372  151 965 540 
Share capital 8 1 000 1 000 
Share premium 8.1 151 200 000 151 200 000 
Accumulated surplus or (loss)  4 372  764 540 

Current liabilities 369 185 552 303 132 923 
Deferred income 9 347 572 376 279 946 266 
Accounts payable 10 12 122 653 12 187 309
South African Revenue Service - VAT 11  9 490 523  10 999 348 

Total equity and liabilities 520 390 924 455 098 462 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

NOTICE
These fi nancial statements were prepared on 28 May 2014 and have been independently audited by Ngubane and Co. 
in accordance with the provisions of the Public Audit Act 2006 as well as any applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act 2008. The Statements were prepared by Mohlomi Nkopane, the Chief  Financial Offi cer of the Company

Annual Financial Statements
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2014 2013

Notes   R   R

Grants applied 12  29 760 633  31 079 665 
Other income 12  160 875  88 721 
Operating expenses  (39 309 193)  (39 065 951)

Loss before fi nance income 13  (9 387 685)  (7 897 565)
Investment income 16  9 387 685  7 897 565 
Surplus before taxation  -    -   
Taxation 14  (760 168)  764 540 
(Loss) / Surplus for the year  (760 168)  764 540 

Statement of Comprehensive Income
PART E:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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Statement of Changes in Equity 

Share capital Share 
premium

Accumulated 
surplus Total

Note R R R R

Opening as at 1 April 2012  1 000  151 200 000  -    151 201 000 
Surplus for the year  -    -    764 540  764 540 
Closing as at 31 March 2013  1 000  151 200 000  764 540  151 965 540 
Loss for the year  -    -    (760 168)  (760 168)
Closing as at 31 March 2014  1 000  151 200 000  4 372  151 205 372 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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2014 2013

Notes R R

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers  29 285 477  46 394 346 
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (39 309 193) (39 065 951)

Cash (utilised) / generated in operations 15,1 (10 023 716) 7 328 395 
Taxation 14  (760 168)  764 540 
Finance income  9 387 685  7 897 565 

Net cash fl ows from operating activities (1 396 199) 15 990 499 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to Property, plant and equipment  (92 194 990)  (91 380 406)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  159 821 100 187 651 232 
Grant received  189 581 733  218 730 897 
Grant applied  (29 760 633)  (31 079 665)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  66 229 912  112 261 324 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  394 946 567  282 685 243 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR  461 176 479  394 946 567 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Statement of Cash Flow
PART E:



59ANNUAL  REPORT  2013/2014

1. Accounting Policies
1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

 
Statement of compliance  

  The annual fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial 
 Reporting Standards.  
 
 Basis of measurement  

The fi nancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis utilising the historical cost concept except for 
fi nancial instruments which are measured at fair value through profi t or loss. 
   
USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 
The preparation of fi nancial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of asset, liabilities, income and expenses. These 
also concern the future and will thus affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next fi nancial year.  
The resulting accounting estimates will, by defi nition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying 
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods’ revisions affect both current and future periods.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The estimates and assumptions that have a signifi cant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount 
of assets and liabilities within the next fi nancial year relate to credit impairment losses on loans and receivables, as 
well as impairment losses on investment property.  During the period under review, there were no other areas involving 
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are signifi cant to the fi nancial 
statements.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Where necessary comparative fi gures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the current year. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Except  as  described  otherwise ,  the accounting  policies  set out  below  have been applied consistently to all periods 
presented in these  fi nancial statements.

1.2 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
Intangible assets, other than goodwill (refer to basis of consolidation policy above), are recognised if it is probable that 
future economic benefi ts will fl ow to the entity from the intangible assets and the costs of the intangible assets can be 
reliably measured. 

Intangible assets comprise separately identifi able intangible items arising from business combinations, computer software 
licences and other intangible assets. Intangible assets are recognised at cost. The cost of an intangible asset acquired in 
a business combination is its fair value at the date of acquisition.  Intangible assets with a defi nite useful life are amortised 
using the straight-line method over their useful economic life, generally not exceeding 20 years.  Intangible assets with 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
PART E:
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PART E:

an indefi nite life are not amortised.  At each date of the consolidated statement of fi nancial position, intangible assets 
are reviewed for indications of impairment or changes in estimated future economic benefi ts.  If such indications exist, 
the intangible assets are analysed to assess whether their carrying amount is fully recoverable.  An impairment loss is 
recognized if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

Intangible assets with an indefi nite useful life are tested annually for impairment and whenever there is an indication 
that the asset may be impaired.      

Computer software and licences 
Acquired computer software and licenses are capitalised as assets on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and 
bring the specifi c software into use. These assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated economic 
life.  Capitalised computer software is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Computer 
software is tested annually for impairment or changes in estimated future benefi ts. 

System development costs 
Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense and
when incurred.   

Direct software development costs that enhance the benefi ts of computer software programs and are clearly associated 
with an identifi able and unique software system, which will be controlled by the Group and has a probable benefi t 
exceeding one year, are recognised as intangible assets.  These costs are initially capitalised as work-in-progress up to 
the date of completion of project after which the asset is transferred to computer software and accounted for as per 
the computer software and licenses policy. Management reviews the carrying value of capitalised work-in-progress on 
an annual basis, irrespective of whether there is an indication of impairment. 
     
Development costs are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:
• it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;
• management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;     
• there is an ability to use or sell the software product;      
• it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefi ts;
• adequate technical, fi nancial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software
 product are available; and
• the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

1.3  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  
All property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress is included at cost.  Cost includes all costs directly 
attributable to bringing the assets to working condition for their intended use.  Borrowing costs are capitalised in relation 
to plant requiring a substantial period of time for preparation for intended use.  Buildings, infrastructure, plant, equipment 
and vehicles are depreciated on a straight line basis at rates that will reduce the historical costs to estimated residual 
values over the anticipated useful lives of the assets. Where buildings are erected on leasehold land or land held 
under a permission to occupy certifi cate with a fi nite life, the buildings are depreciated over the duration of the lease 
or permission to occupy certifi cate.

Property, plant and equipment acquired under fi nance lease arrangements are capitalised.  Such assets are depreciated 
on a straight line basis at rates considered appropriate to reduce capitalised cost to estimated residual value over the 
anticipated useful lives of the assets.  Lease fi nance charges are amortised over the duration of the fi nance leases using 
the effective interest rate method.  Properties subject to sale and lease-back transactions, where the lease is classifi ed as 
a fi nance lease and the value of the property implicit in the lease is higher than the carrying value, the carrying value 
is not adjusted and no gain is recognised.  The residual value of assets is the estimated amount that the entity would 
currently obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already at the 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.  A review of residual value is performed at balance sheet 
date each year, as well as an adjustment, if appropriate. The assets useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. The anticipated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Furniture & fi ttings
- Computers    3 years
- Furniture  10 years

Equipment 
- Sundry equipment   5 years

1.4 INVENTORIES AND CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value.  The cost of inventories is based on weighted 
average principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring, converting the inventories and bringing them to 
their present location and condition. In the case of manufactured or constructed inventories and work in progress, costs 
include an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable value is 
the estimated selling price in the ordinary cause of business, less the estimated completion costs and selling expenses.

1.5 GOVERNMENT GRANTS 
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the entity has complied with the conditions 
attached to the grant and that the grant has been received.

Government grants whose primary condition is that the entity should purchase, construct or acquire non –current 
assets are deducted in arriving at the carrying amount of the assets. 

Other government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the costs for which 
they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants that are receivable as compensation for 
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purposes of giving immediate fi nancial support to the entity with no future 
related cost are recognised in profi t or loss in the period in which they are received.

Government grants received for specifi c loans and advances programmes are recognised as income when all the 
conditions of the grant have been fulfi lled and there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received. 

1.6 OPERATING LEASE
Assets leased by the entity under which all the risks and benefi ts of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are 
classifi ed as operating leases. Rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to profi t or loss on a straight line 
basis over the term of the lease.      

1.7 DEFERRED TAX 
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for fi nancial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities shall be 
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.  
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable benefi ts will be available against which 
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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1.8 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outfl ow of economic benefi ts will be required to settle 
the obligation. 

A provision for an onerous contract is recognised by the entity when the expected benefi ts to be derived by the entity 
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract.  An onerous contract 
is a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic 
benefi ts expected to be received under it.

Contingent liabilities, which include certain guarantees other than fi nancial guarantees, are possible obligations that 
arise from past events whose existence will be confi rmed only by the occurrence, or non-occurrence, of one or more 
uncertain future events; not wholly within the entity’s control.  Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the fi nancial 
statements but are disclosed in the notes to the fi nancial statements unless they are remote.

1.9 REVENUE 

Net interest income 
Interest income and expenses are recognised in profi t or loss on an accrual basis, with reference to the principal 
outstanding using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a fi nancial asset or fi nancial liability 
and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.  The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the fi nancial instrument.

In terms of IAS 39, interest is accrued in respect of impaired advances based on the original effective interest rate used 
to determine the recoverable amount. 

1.10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Non derivative fi nancial instruments
Non-derivative fi nancial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, 
cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances, borrowings and deposits. 
 
Non-derivative fi nancial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus for instruments not at fair value, through 
profi t and loss, any directly attributable transaction costs, except as described below. Subsequent to initial recognition 
non-derivative fi nancial instruments are measured as described below.     

A fi nancial instrument is recognised if the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  Financial 
assets are derecognised if the entity’s contractual right to the cash fl ows from the fi nancial assets expires or if the entity 
transfers the fi nancial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset.  
Financial liabilities are derecognised if the entity’s obligations specifi ed in the contract expire or are discharged or 
cancelled.

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss
An instrument is recognised at fair value through profi t and loss if it is held for trading or is designated as such upon 
initial recognition. Financial instruments are designated at fair value through profi t and loss if the entity manages such 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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investments and makes purchases and sale decisions based on their fair values. Financial instruments at fair value 
through profi t or loss are measured at fair value, and changes in value are recognised in profi t or loss. The fair value of 
publicly traded investments is based on quoted bid prices. 

Loans and receivables 
Loans and advances are non derivative fi nancial assets with fi xed or determinable payments, are initially measured 
at fair value plus origination transaction costs and subsequently accounted for at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method, less any impairment losses.

Trade and other receivables that have fi xed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are 
classifi ed as loans and receivables. Loans and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less any impairment charges.  

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less, net of bank overdrafts.      

Other    
Other non-derivative fi nancial instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any 
impairment losses.

Impairment of fi nancial assets
Loans and advances are stated after the deduction of provisions for credit impairment.  Loans and advances are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.  Loans and 
advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if there is objective evidence of impairment, resulting from 
one or more loss events that occurred after initial recognition, that indicates it is probable the entity will be unable to 
realise all amounts due. The carrying amount of a fi nancial asset identifi ed as impaired is reduced to its estimated 
recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount of the advance is calculated as the present value of expected 
future cash fl ows discounted at the original effective interest rate at inception of the advance.   

In estimating the expected future cash fl ows from the realisation of “permission to occupy” securities, past experience in 
realising this type of security has been taken into account.  Subsequent to impairment, the effects of discounting unwind 
over time, based on the original effective interest rate.      

The impairment of non-performing loans and advances is based on periodic evaluations of loans and advances 
and take account of past loss experience and the economic climate in which the borrowers operate.  Impairment of 
performing loans and advances is accounted for if there is observable evidence that a loss event has occurred after 
the initial recognition of the fi nancial asset. In order to provide for latent losses in a portfolio of loans and advances 
that have not yet been individually identifi ed as impaired, a credit impairment for incurred but not reported losses is 
created based on historic loss patterns and estimated emergence periods.   This impairment is referred to as unidentifi ed 
impairment.      

Once all reasonable attempts have been made at collection and there is no realistic prospect of recovering 
outstanding amounts, an advance is written off against the related impairment.  Loans and advances impairments and 
any subsequent reversals thereof or recoveries of amounts previously written off are either charged or credited to the 
income statement.   

Non - current assets held for sale 
Non - current assets (or properties in possession) are classifi ed as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to 
be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the 
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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PART E:

Derecognition of fi nancial assets 
The entity derecognises a fi nancial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash fl ows from the asset expire; or 
it transfers the fi nancial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.  
If the entity neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control 
the transferred asset, the entity recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it 
may have to pay. If the entity retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred fi nancial asset, 
the entity continues to recognise the fi nancial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds 
received.      

1.11 Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of or not in accordance with 
a requirement of any applicable legislation, including:     
- The PFMA; and      
- Any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government. This is expenditure

that would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. All irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is 
charged against income in the period in which it is incurred and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as 
revenue in the statement of fi nancial performance.      

1.12 Subsequent Events
The entity accounts for subsequent events in terms of IAS10. The key issues recognised and disclosed include: Events 
after reporting period: Noting events favourable or unfavourable that occur between the end of the reporting period 
and the date that the fi nancial statements are authorised for issue.      

Adjusting Event:
Events after the reporting period that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting 
period which can impact on the going concern of the entity. These events will require an adjustment to the Annual 
Financial Statements.      

Non-adjusting Events:
Events after the reporting period that are indicative of a condition that arose after the end of the reporting period but 
for which no adjustment is necessary.      

1.13 NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATION TO BE ADOPTED. 

2. LEASEHOLD ASSET
Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Company SOC Limited has entered into a fi nancial lease agreement with the City of 
uMhlathuze over land described as Erven 16178-16281 Richards Bay, forming Phase 1A of the industrial development zone. The 
lease is for an indefi nite period, that is, until date of transfer of the land to the company and the lease payments are a nominal 

R1.00 per annum. Rates and taxes in respect of the leasehold are approximately R142,152.29 per month. 

Standard/ Interpretation Effective date Effective date Details

IAS 19 Defi ned Benefi t Plans: Employee Contributions Nov 2013 1 Jul 2014

Amendments to 4 standards Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle Dec 2013 1 Jul 2014

Amendments to 4 standards Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle Dec 2013 1 Jul 2014

IFRS 9 (2009) Financial Instruments Nov 2009 To be decided

IFRS 9 (2010) Financial Instruments Oct 2010 To be decided
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Total Furniture & 
Fittings

Offi ce 
Equipment

Computers & 
Software’s

Work-in 
Progress

R R R R R
3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2014
Carrying amount at beginning of year 16 905 16 905  -    -  -   

Cost 19 794 19 794  -    -    -   
Accumulated depreciation  (2 889)  (2 889)  -    -    -   

Current year additions  92 194 990  19 644  183 655  344 407  91 647 285 
Grants applied  (92 194 990)  (19 644)  (183 655)  (344 407)  (91 647 285)
Depreciation for the year  (1 590)  (1 590)  -    -    -   
Assets written off  (7 456)  (7 456)  -   -   -  

Cost 12 338 12 338  -    -    -   
Accumulated depreciation  (4 478)  (4 478)  -    -    -   

Carrying amount at end of year 2014 7 860 7 860  -  -  -   

2013
Carrying amount at beginning of year 31 168 27 630  -    3 538  -   

Cost 572 954 408 286 22 145 142 523  -   
Accumulated depreciation  (541 786)  (380 656)  (22 145)  (138 985)  -   

Current year additions  91 380 406  220 193  41 520  875 375  90 243 318 
Grants applied  (91 380 406)  (220 193)  (41 520)  (875 375)  (90 243 318)
Depreciation for the year  (2 889)  (2 889)  -    -    -   
Assets written off  (553 160)  (388 492)  (22 145)  (142 523)  -   
Accumulated depreciation reversal  541 786  380 656  22 145  138 985  -   

Cost 19 794 19 794  -    -    -   
Accumulated depreciation  (2 889)  (2 889)  -    -    -   

Carrying amount at end of year 2013 16 905 16 905  -  -  -   
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2014 2013

R R

4. DEPOSITS
Tuzi Gazi properties - Occupation of offi ce buildings  175 816  175 816 

City of uMhlathuze - Electricity  25 300  25 300 

 201 116  201 116 

5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES
Employee debtors   37 330   132 182 

Other receivables  58 853 201  58 926 587 

 58 890 531  59 058 769 

Ageing of past due but not impaired

30 to 60 days   316 586   801 949 

60 to 90 days - -

90 to 120 days - -

>120 days  58 573 945  58 256 820 

 58 890 531  59 058 769 

Included in the balance above is R 7 219 444.62 (2013: R6 709 525.24) that is held in trust by the conveyancers, Shepstone and 
Wylie pending the transfer of land and R51 200 000 (2013: R 51 200 000) deposit paid to City of uMhlathuze as part payment for 
the purchase of the land.

R R
6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Absa current account  205 766  421 828 

Absa call account  94 615  56 839 814 

Petty cash  2 908  3 537 

the dti grant call account  183 304 957  191 392 589 

Land purchase call account  8 285 351  146 288 799 

First National Bank call account  90 695 475 -

Investec call account  89 189 454 -

Nedbank call account  89 397 954 -

 461 176 479  394 946 567 
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2014 2013

R R

7. DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred taxation asset comprises:

- Adjustment  -  822 515 

- Depreciation  (84 293)  (101 990)

- Accumulated loss  (110 567)  (127 532)

- Provision for bonuses  -    (1 410 786)

- Provision for leave pay  78 963  25 575 

- Rental smoothing  959  (82 888)

 (114 937)  (875 105)
Deferred taxation reconciliation:

Balance at beginning of the year  (875 105)  (933 081)

Movements during the year
- Adjustment -  822 515 
- Depreciation  (42 523)  (41 770)
-  Provision for leave pay  53 256  25 708 
-  Provision for bonuses  705 393  (705 393)
-  Rental smoothing  44 042  (43 083)
-  Balance at end of the year  (114 937)  (875 105)

8. SHARE CAPITAL  
Authorised share capital
1000 ordinary shares of R1 each 1 000 1 000 

Issued share capital
1000 ordinary shares issued @ R1 par value. 1 000 1 000 
1000 shares held by the Province of KwaZulu-Natal 
represented by its Department of Economic Development 
and Tourism.

8.1 SHARE PREMIUM
Issued share capital
Funds held to acquire assets in respect of shareholding 151 200 000 151 200 000
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2014 2013
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9. DEFERRED INCOME
Opening Balance  279 946 266  183 675 440 
Government grants received during the year 
(excluding VAT)  181 651 276  214 592 982 
Interest received on the dti grant ( Capital grant)  7 930 457  4 137 915 
Grants applied against operating expenditure  (29 760 633)  (31 079 665)
Grants applied against fi xed assets other than 
work in progress  (547 705)  (1 137 088)
Grants applied against work in progress  (91 647 285)  (90 243 318)

 347 572 376  279 946 266 
 

10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Creditors rent straight line   170 876   14 077 
Provisions  7 916 789  9 775 194 
Accounts payable  4 034 988  2 398 038 

 12 122 653  12 187 309 

11. SOUTH AFRICAN REVENUE SERVICES- VAT
VAT payable  (9 490 523)  (10 999 348)

Vat payable results from a VAT portion of grants received from 
the DEDT and the dti which is payable upon receipt of grant.

12. GROSS REVENUE
Gross revenue comprises government grants 
recognised as income after taking VAT into account 
and is disclosed as follows:-
Grant applied  29 760 633 31 079 665
Grants income 160 875 88 721

 29 921 508  31 168 386 

13. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS  (9 387 685) (7 897 565)
Loss from operations is stated after taking the following 
into account:
Audit fees - for services as auditors (both internal and external)  350 631  245 767
Depreciation - Furniture & Fittings 1 590 2 889
Directors’ fees  2 168 299  1 701 044
Staff costs  18 010 627  19 921 643
Legal fees  1 027 908  212 886
Lease payments  57 016  53 247
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2014 2013

R R

14. TAXATION

SA Normal tax comprises:

Taxation for the year

   Current taxation  -    -   

   Deferred tax  (760 168)  764 540 

 (760 168)  764 540 

Reconciled as follows :

Standard tax rate 28% 28%

Taxation on profi t for the year at the standard rate  (760 168)  764 540 

Tax effect on permanent differences

Change in tax rate  

 (760 168)  764 540

Effective tax rate 28% 28%

15. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

15.1 Cash generated from operations

Profi t/(Loss) before taxation  -  - 

Adjustments for :

Depreciation  1 590  2 889 

Assets written off  7 456  11 374 

Finance income  (9 387 685)  (7 897 565)

Operating income before working capital changes  (9 378 640)  (7 883 302)

Working capital changes  (645 076)  15 211 697 

Decrease / (Increase) in accounts receivable  168 238  (313 188)

Decrease in VAT payable  (1 508 825)  -   

Decrease in deferred tax asset  760 167  57 976 

Decrease in VAT receivable  -    11 640 532 

(Decrease) / Increase in accounts payable  (64 655)  3 826 377 

Cash (utilised)/ generated from operations:  (10 023 716)  7 328 395 
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16. INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest earned 9 387 685 7 897 565

Investment income comprises of interest received on short 
term funds deposits with various banks as per Company’s 
investment policy.

17. RELATED PARTIES 

The company in the normal course of business entered 
into various related party transactions with its stakeholders. 
These transactions occurred under terms and conditions 
that are no more favourable to those entered into with 
third parties in arm’s length  transactions

The following are defi ned as related party transactions:

Balance sheet items

- Transfers (KZN Department of Economic Development 
and Tourism)

 
25 164 000  -   

- Transfers (Department of Trade and Industry )  181 000 000  -   

Income statement items:

 - Directors fees  2 168 299  1 701 044 

 - Audit fees (KZN Provincial Treasury - Internal Audit)  75 636  -   
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Salary Performance 
Bonuses Allowance  Leave Other*  Total  

R R R R R R
KEY PERSONNEL REMUNERATION 
- EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT 
Executive Management as at 
31 MARCH 2014

Mr. P Motsoahae (CEO)**  739 279  -   - -  22 378  761 657 

Mr. I Nxedlana***  -    1 132 488 - - -  1 132 488 
Mr. M Nkopane  1 038 327  207 232  843 593  -    60 689  2 149 841 
Mr. R Ngcamu  1 026 327  155 424  194 672  -    98 123  1 474 546 
Mrs. N Zulu  1 038 327  103 617  74 400  -    31 641  1 247 985 
Mr. J Muller  1 050 737  44 551  38 810  -    33 413  1 167 512 
Ms. Z Zeka  1 100 828  207 232  14 400  -    32 820  1 355 280 

 5 993 826  1 850 542  1 165 876  -    279 065  9 289 308 

** Mr. P Motsoahae was appointed with effect from 1 December 2013.
*** Mr. I Nxedlana resigned as CEO with effect from 31 March 2013.

Executive Management as at 31 MARCH  2013

Mr. I Nxedlana  (CEO)  2 049 366  -    49 699  470 501  77 073  2 646 639 
Mr. M Nkopane  976 158  100 000  70 800  -    50 750  1 197 708 
Mr. R Ngcamu  1 026 055  100 000  70 800  -    14 318  1 211 173 
Mr. S Gumede  684 083  48 646  52 200  91 646  27 326  903 901 

Mrs. N Zulu  988 611  100 000  70 800  -    23 078  1 182 489 
Ms. N Sipunzi  228 186  -    15 400  4 414  -    248 000 
Ms. Z Zeka  1 048 731  100 000  10 800  -    10 702  1 170 233 

 7 001 190  448 646  340 499  566 561  203 247  8 560 143 

* Other includes reimbursement costs for expenses incurred while on business trip in order to execute assigned duties.

KEY PERSONNEL REMUNERATION - DIRECTORS
31 MARCH  2014

Salary  Total 

R R

Ms. B Kunene*  581 315  581 315 
Mr. M Clark  393 162  393 162 
Ms. T Eboka  197 081  197 081 
Mr. Z Fihlani  209 497  209 497 

Mr. A Mahlalutye  123 379  123 379 
Mr. S Makhanya  122 213  122 213 
Mr. D Mathfi eld**  -    -   
Mr. E Mbatha  156 732  156 732 
Mr. K Naidoo**  -    -   
Ms. J Ndlovu  160 785  160 785 
Ms. M Ndlovu  159 111  159 111 
Ms. N Sithole***  65 025  65 025 

 2 168 299  2 168 299 
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Salary  Total 

R R
KEY PERSONNEL REMUNERATION - DIRECTORS
31 MARCH  2013   

Ms. B Kunene*  435 987  435 987 
Mr. M Clark  256 611  256 611 
Ms. T Eboka  125 386  125 386 
Mr. Z Fihlani  114 153  114 153 
Mr. A Mahlalutye  130 050  130 050 
Mr. S Makhanya  130 050  130 050 
Mr. D Mathfi eld**  -    -   
Mr. E Mbatha  126 386  126 386 
Mr. K Naidoo**  -    -   
Ms. J Ndlovu  106 839  106 839 
Ms. M Ndlovu  113 045  113 045 
Ms. N Sithole***  127 717  127 717 
Ms. L Mthembu****  34 823  34 823 

 1 701 044  1 701 044 

*       A provision has been raised based on MEC approved board remuneration
**     No remuneration paid as they are senior government offi cials representing the Department of 

         Economic Development and the dti.
***   Remuneration paid to Transnet foundation
**** Member of the Audit Committee (Non Board member)

2014 2013

R R

18. COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments - A rental agreement  for 
offi ce space was entered into with Tuzi Gazi properties 
for period of 3 years commencing on 1 May 2013.

The future minimum lease payments under 
non-cancellable leases is as follows: 

Current  2 072 009  1 835 968 
Next 12 months 159 175 159 175
From 2 - 5 years 4 127 640  -   
Later than 5 years  -    -   
Total future cashfl ows 6 358 823 1 995 143

Other commitments
Current 124 079 135 53 247
Next 12 months  95 679 461  84 939 780 
From 2 - 5 years  -    44 366 710 
Later than 5 years  -    -   
Total  commitments 226 117 419 131 354 880

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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2014 2013
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19. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE ,WASTEFUL AND 
 UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE
19.1 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Opening balance  -    -   
Add: Irregular expenditure - current year  163 931  191 977
Less ; amount condoned  (163 931)  (191 977)

 -    -   
Less amounts recoverable  (not condoned)  -    -   
Less amounts  not recoverable  (not condoned)  -    -   
Irregular expenditure awaiting for condonation  -    -   

Details of irregular Expenditure -Current year

Incident
 -    -   

Non compliance with supply chain management policy
(Condoned by condoning authority- Accounting Authority)  163 931 

 
191 977 

 -    -   
Non compliance with subsistence and travel policy
(Condoned by condoning authority- Accounting Authority)  -     -   

Total  163 931  191 977 

19.2 WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
There was no wasteful expenditure identifi ed during the year.
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2014 2013

R R
19.3 UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE

There was no unauthorised expenditure identifi ed during the year.

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The company’s exposure to interest rate risk on fi nancial 
instrument at the balance sheet date as at:
31 MARCH  2014

Total fi nancial assets
Trade and other receivable  58 890 531  59 058 769 
Cash and cash equivalents  461 176 479  394 946 567 

 520 067 011  454 005 336 

Total fi nancial liabilities
Trade and other payables  12 122 653  12 187 309 

Credit Risk
The Company does not have huge debtors book, as a result, its exposure to credit risk is minimal. The items indicated under trade 
and other receivables refers largely to R51 .2 million land deposits for the phase 1A. The cash and cash equivalents are deposits 
which are placed with A1 rating fi nancial institutions. The deposits comprise grants received from the Department of Economic 
Development and Tourism and the Department of Trade and Industry, these funds are immediately available upon request. The 
Company limits its exposure by dealing with well-established fi nancial institutions. The Company does not have signifi cant exposure 
to an individual debtor or counter-party.          

Liquidity Risk
The Company exposure to liquidity risk is very minimal as it is 100% funded by the Department of Economic Development and 
Tourism and the Department of Trade and Industry. The annual budgets are approved at the beginning of each fi scal year and  
funding agreements concluded between the parties. Cash fl ows are monitored monthly against budgets and adjustments are 
made where necessary. Risk management assessments are conducted  to assist with identifying any possible cash fl ow, liquidity or 
other risks. In addition, the entity is exploring opportunities for raising income to ensure the sustainability of the organisation in case 
the grant is reduced or cut back.          

Interest Rate Risk
Although the Company’s funds are subject to interest rate risk, these funds are placed with reputable fi nancial institutions. The entity 
does not hedge any of its funds but monitors the fl uctuations in interest rates and obtains advice from bank offi cials on a 
regular basis.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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2014 2013
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21. PROVISIONS
21.1 LEAVE PAY ACCRUED

Opening balance  497 106  986 706 
Movement during the year  214 002  (489 601)
Closing balance  711 107  497 106 

Leave pay is determined using historical data based on the 
past services offered by the employees. Leave pay is accrued as 
required by IAS 19.

21.2 PROVISION FOR BONUSES
Opening balance  3 541 996  2 519 262 
Performance bonuses paid  (2 689 195)  (1 272 877)
Performance bonuses  638 806  2 295 611 

 1 491 607  3 541 996 
The Company remunerates employees on performance as per 
Company policy.
- Litigation claims  5 486 757  5 486 757 

- Other  142 619  249 335 

22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

22.1 Service provider - This matter relates to service provider challenging the supply chain management processes of the
Company. While the Company is of the opinion that it would be able to successfully defend the matter, the outcome was 
not known at year end, the amount in question is R5 ,486,757      

22.2 A former employee has fi led a litigation claim with the CCMA against the Company    

22.3 The Plaintiffs claim that the former employee of the Company, orally agreed, on behalf of the Company, to purchase 
its portion of land for use as part of the RBIDZ and are claiming damages for loss of selling price and lost commission, the 
amount in question is R727 000 000. The matter was successfully defended on 22 May 2014.



76 RICHARDS  BAY  INDUSTRIAL  DEVELOPMENT  ZONE  (RBIDZ)

2014 2013
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Grants applied  29 760 633  31 079 665 

Other income  160 875  88 721 
Tender fees  98 247  19 737 
Other income  62 628  68 984 

Operating expenses  39 309 193  39 065 951 
Advertising and promotion  1 622 592  1 112 064 
Agents commission  16 966  12 135 
Audit fees  350 631  245 767 
Asset written off  7 456  11 374 
Bank charges  22 063  18 104 
Bursaries  134 066  24 404 
Cellphones and internets  -    69 024 
Cleaning services  33 050  26 253 
Corporate social investment spending  153 035  67 932 
Depreciation  1 590  2 889 
Directors' fees  2 168 299  1 701 044 
Electricity and water  113 125  101 407 
Insurance  126 049  68 183 
Lease charges  57 016  53 247 
Legal fees  1 027 908  212 886 
Maintenance  108 786  125 965 
Marketing materials  183 604  515 411 
Postage, printing and stationery  214 695  323 192 
Professional services  7 359 271  8 294 716 
Property rates and taxes  1 725 693  1 732 316 
Refreshments  240 950  172 962 
Recruitment and transfers  613 594  7 167 
Rental expenses  2 014 992  1 682 101 
Employee cost  18 010 627  19 921 643 
Security services  42 434  22 056 
SMME Development  45 845  -   
Subscriptions  526 491  339 460 
Telephone and fax  349 015  178 778 
Training  470 699  294 053 
Travel and accommodation  1 553 879  1 681 281 
Venue hire and exhibitions  14 772  48 138 

Loss before fi nance income  (9 387 685)  (7 897 565)

Investment income  9 387 685  7 897 565 

Surplus for the year  -    -   

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Detailed Statement of Comprehensive Income
PART E:



List Of Abbreviations / Acronyms 

AGSA Auditor General of South Africa

APP Annual Performance Plan

MEC Member of Executive Council

BBBEE Broad Based Black  Economic Empowerment

BDM Business Development & Marketing

CEO Chief Executive Offi cer

CFO Chief Financial Offi cer

EIA Environmental Impact Assessment

IDZ Industrial Development Zone

IPD Infrastructure Planning & Development

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

TIA Traffi c Impact Assessment

TR   Treasury Regulations

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework

RBIDZ Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone

SANRAL South African National Roads Agency Limited

SARS South African Revenue Services

SHEQ Safety, Health, Environment & Quality

SMME Small Medium and Micro Enterprises

SCM Supply Chain Management

MPP Member of Provincial Parliament
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The Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Company 
(SOC) Limited (Reg 2002 /009856/07)

Captains Walk Building, Tuzi Gazi Waterfront, 
Pioneer Road, Richards Bay

Private bag X1005, Richards Bay, 3900

Tel : (+27) 35 788 0571 
Fax : (+27) 35 788 0578 
Email : info@rbidz.co.za

www.rbidz.co.za
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